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Financial Highlights
B RE

Revenue of the Group decreased by 1.25% or RMB25.7 million to
RMB2,024.1 million for the Reporting Period (2020: RMB2,049.8
million), among which revenue from sales of Human Albumin
Solution increased by approximately RMB84.3 million, and offset by
the decrease of revenue of antibiotics which amounted to RMB110.0
million.

Gross profit of the Group increased by RMB91.2 million to RMB365.0
million for the Reporting Period (2020: RMB273.8 million), while
gross profit margin increased from 13.4% in 2020 to 18.0% for the
Reporting Period. The increase in gross profit margin was benefited
from the higher selling price of Human Albumin compared with the
last year.

Net profit of the Group increased by 14.4% to RMB135.1 million for
the Reporting Period (2020: RMB118.1 million), primarily benefited
from the increase in gross profit of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, net profit attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to RMB135.1 million (2020: net profit
RMB118.1 million), representing an increase in net profit of RMB17.0
million.

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to RMB0.08 for
the Reporting Period (2020: basic and diluted earnings per share
RMBO0.07).

The Board resolved not to declare any final dividend for the Reporting
Period (2020: Nil).
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Financial Highlights B/ %=

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20215
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB‘000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®TR
Operating results REXRE
Revenue Uz 806,723 952,957 1,176,409 2,049,803 2,024,055
Gross profit EF 93,533 221,025 219,847 273,826 364,950
Profit/(loss) after tax BREEER, (E18) (194,868)  (272,015) 42,955 135,955 167,387
Profit/(loss) for the year NEERF,(E518) (185,897)  (280,615) 23,550 118,137 135,083
Profit/(loss) attributable to RATEB AES (185,896)  (280,614) 23,552 118,137 135,083
owners of the Company A (E1E)
Profitability &F|
Gross margin B[P 11.6% 23.2% 18.7% 13.4% 18.0%
Net profit/(loss) margin G (B1B) = (23.0%) (29.4%) 2% 5.8% 6.7%
Revenue Profit/(loss) Attributable to
Wi Owners of the Company
KATHEE AEMER, (BE8)
2,049,803 ARETT 118,137 135,083
2,100,000 - 2,024,055 100,000
1,800,000 [ 50,000 23,552
1,500,000 [~ 0 . . . .
1,176,409
1,200,000 [ 952,957 -50,000 -
900,000 806,723 -100,000 -
600,000 - -150,000 -
300,000 -200,000 [(185,896)
. . . . -250,000 -
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 -300,000 (280,614)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20214
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT AREFTRT ARBTT AR®TT
Financial position B EEAR SR
Total assets WAE 819,219 611,762 832,344 1,252,053 1,232,766
Total equity Pl ey 272,730 22,723 46,292 164,429 374,886
Total liabilities wafE 546,489 589,039 786,052 1,087,624 857,880
Equity attributable to owners — ZNAFHA A 273,635 23,629 47,200 165,337 374,886
of the Company e
Cash and cash equivalents* HReRE2EBY 75,651 80,343 224,756 143,765 381,067
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
Shareholders for their concern and support to the Company, and hereby
present the report of the Group for the Reporting Period.

In 2021, the Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic continues to
spread around the world, and various industries and fields in China are
facing more severe challenges than in 2020. As far as the pharmaceutical
industry is concerned, on the one hand, due to the pandemic, the demand
for related pharmaceutical products has been amplified, and certain
market segments have become popular. On the other hand, due to the
fluctuation and continuation of the epidemic situation both domestically
and abroad, it has caused huge pressure on the supplier and the whole
supply chain of pharmaceutical products. “How to maintain a stable
product supply in 2021 when the pandemic is normalized” has become a
difficult problem faced by every pharmaceutical company.

During the Reporting Period, the annual batch release volume of human
albumin is 63.67 million vials, a slight increase of 5.2% over last year.
The proportions of imported albumin and domestic albumin are 65%
and 35% respectively, almost the same as last year. Affected by the
pandemic, although the total amount of imported albumin has shown
certain growth, the growth rate has dropped in 2021. This is due to the
continuingly worsening situation of COVID-19 epidemic in the United
States, which led to a sharp decline in the plasma volume collected by
major foreign fractionators, which was ultimately reflected in the sluggish
growth in supply throughout the year.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's sales of human albumin
injection amounted to RMB1,973.3 million, an increase of approximately
RMB84.3 million compared to 2020, an increase of approximately 4.5%.
The sales revenue of antibiotic products was approximately RMB50.8
million, a decrease of approximately 68.4%. During the Reporting Period,
the gross profit achieved a total of RMB365.0 million, a year-on-year
increase of RMB91.2 million compared to the gross profit of RMB273.8
million in 2020. The gross profit margin of the Group reached 18.0%
during the Reporting Period, which increased by 4.6% as compared to the
gross profit margin of 13.4% in 2020.
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Chairman'’s Statement X E#RE

Benefiting from the substantial increase in purchase volume in 2020 and
a reasonable inventory level, the Company distributed approximately
7.1 million vials of human albumin during the Reporting Period. At the
same time, due to the recovery of market demand and the stabilization
of terminal prices, the supply price of the Company’s human albumin
products has also remained stable throughout the year. On the other
hand, although the spread of the overseas COVID-19 epidemic at the
beginning of 2021 led to a decline in annual purchases compared with
2020, with the steady recovery of plasma collection in the second half of
the year 2021, the continued capacity expansion of overseas suppliers and
the availability of the products from its new European factory approved in
China, the Company expects that the purchase volume and sales volume
of human albumin in 2022 will further increase significantly, and the sales
revenue and market share of the products distributed by the Company
will reach a new high.

In terms of marketing category, the Company further adjusted and
optimized the sales channels for products to enter the terminal channels
compared with the year 2020. In 2021, the marketing network of our
products has covered large-scale key hospitals in major cities across the
country, and has further penetrated into hospitals in prefectures and
second- and third-tier cities with the cooperation of various distributors
and promoters. During the Reporting Period, the proportion of the sales
of our Company’s products in terminal hospitals has grown significantly
compared with the year 2020. In 2022, the Company will continue to
implement the marketing strategy by focusing on the terminal hospital
market, supplemented by retail pharmacies, and strive for greater market
coverage and sales channel share.

In 2021, the Group's net profit maintained growth and achieved
RMB135.1 million. The successful optimization of the business system has
laid a solid foundation for the Company’s operations in 2022.

BEN2020F REE N RIRIZFA ARG BHETK
FooREHANARR KT HEAMNBER T RL
7AEEM - R - EMEHREEU &K G ERS
BHRTET ARAMAEAEROEEEREES
FREFBE - BZ—HE - BEARA2021FVEINZIBEN
SEYN T2 FRESHE200F 6 N8 0 BHEE
2021 T FRFE MBS MAE LA RIBIMEEE B ER
EREEFAF BN LHERERBREMN T - AF]
BEH202FMAMAEZEARBEEMEESBE—FX
BiEF - ARATREERNEERENMSENEDLS
BalFs -

BHEBHE - ARAR20205F 8 — S ARMELL T
EmEAKIRMIEERE - H2021F - LAERD
EHRRERE T 2B ERTAL SR B AR
£ FANEESEHERTERERNRIENE—22E
ATmk = ZBETWHER c EREHMA - KA
FE mE A B B HOSH E (G LEARER2020F A T R &
o 20225 RAIBHEERAKLRBRET SR
T TEEE/EHEHER  YFREANTSE
ETHERELER -

202N FAEBGFRIFIGRE - EZEARKI135.18H
BT o EBBANKINELARRITE2022FHE LS
ET RIFEYEE o
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Chairman'’s Statement X E#RE

In September 2021, the Group officially announced its entry into the
aesthetic medicine industry and started related industry layouts. In recent
years, China’s aesthetic medicine industry has been showing a trend of
rapid development. According to Frost & Sullivan, China has become the
third largest aesthetic medicine market in the world. The market size is
expected to increase from RMB143.6 billion in 2020 to RMB318.5 billion
in 2024, with a compound growth rate of 17.3% in the next five years.
There is no doubt that the aesthetic medicine industry is a golden track
with great market potential.

In September 2021, the Group and a partner company started the
development of the polycaprolactone microsphere facial filler for injection
("Girl Needle"”) project, with a planned investment of RMB88.5 million.
This product is the latest non-surgical medical aesthetic product. It has
an immediate filling effect, can promote collagen proliferation within a
certain period of time, and achieve a long-term sustained repair function
to maintain the youthful and refined status of the face and body. As the
Group's first product in the medical aesthetics industry, the non-surgical
medical aesthetics products represented by the Girl Needle are highly
sought after by consumers both domestically and abroad due to its simple
operation, quick recovery and low risk. According to data from Frost &
Sullivan, the scale of China’s non-surgical medical aesthetic market will
increase from RMB54.5 billion in 2020 to RMB98 billion in 2022, with a
compound annual growth rate of 34.1%. It is not difficult to see that non-
surgical medical aesthetic products such as “Girl Needle” have a market
of nearly RMB100 billion in China and have great room for growth. The
Company will continue to develop a series of products “PCL+X" based on
polycaprolactone raw materials, and derive a variety of medical aesthetic
products.
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Chairman'’s Statement X E#RE

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic continues, the Group continued to
push forward the adjustment of sales strategies and further optimization
measures, and continued to penetrate and access new terminal
hospitals. With the stable development of the terminal market, the
Company’s adaptability to policy adjustments and market changes in
the pharmaceutical industry has been greatly increased. While actively
building the internal systems, the Company is also carrying out the
management and training of talents. Through this series of measures,
the sales team for the products of the Company has been continuously
optimized. The Company will also continue to strengthen the construction
of internal control and risk management system, pay close attention to
corporate social responsibility, and practice corporate social responsibility
in the Group's governance. Based on the good cooperation between the
Group and its supplier Octapharma, at the beginning of 2022, the Group
newly obtained the exclusive distribution rights in mainland China for the
distribution of human albumin produced by its supplier Octapharma’s
manufacturing plant in Lingolsheim, France. At the same time, according
to the forecast and production plan of Octapharma, the supply of human
albumin products to the Chinese market will be significantly increased in
2022 and the marketing approval of the products produced by the new
factory will soon be obtained. It is believed that the stable and continuous
cooperation between the Group and suppliers will enable the Group’s
sales performance in 2022 to reach a new high. At the same time, the
Group's projects in the medical aesthetics industry chain have also been
launched in an orderly manner during the year. It is believed that medical
aesthetics, a market with great potential, will contribute new profit
growth to the Group in the near future.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
heartfelt thanks to all Shareholders, customers and partners for their full
trust and support to the Group, as well as to all the employees of the
Group for their efforts and contributions. The Group will seize the market
opportunities arising from the upgrading and transformation of the
pharmaceutical industry, continuously enhance its own competitiveness,
and create maximum value for Shareholders, customers and stakeholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

30 March 2022
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7Bl B
Revenue Uz

The Group recorded revenue of RMB2,024.1 million for the Reporting  AEBERREEANFEURZARE2, 0241858 T &
Period, representing a decrease of RMB25.7 million, or 1.3% as compared 20208 A B#2,049.8BE TR ARK257HE
to RMB2,049.8 million in 2020, which could be further analysed as 7T« JGiE1.3% * AlE—$DH0OT ¢

follows:

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB million % of revenue RMB million % Of revenue

ARBEET Kt ARBBET LG yad

Human Albumin Solution AMBEBEFIR 1) 1,973.3 97.5% 1,889.0 92.2
Antibiotics nEZ 2) 50.8 2.5% 160.8 7.8
Total B 2,024.1 100.0 2,049.8 100.0

1) During the Reporting Period, revenue of human albumin solution stood at 1)  R&EHR - AMAZEAIFREEAARE1,97338

RMB1,973.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 4.5% or BT ' HHE2020F EAKI45% K ARKESIIES
RMB84.3 million as compared with 2020. Such increase in revenue mainly T WaEMEZERRANBERHESMNHEESRE
benefited from the increase in the supply volume and the sales volume of FHRTEL -

human albumin.

2)  During the Reporting Period, revenue from sales of antibiotics decreased by~ 2)  $R&EHIA © R E R E A HE S W E2020F 5

RMB110.0 million as compared with 2020. The decrease was mainly caused ARBENM00BEBT - BALETERAANEEURRES
by the outbreak of the new coronavirus COVID-19 which caused the drop COVID-19M BB F BT AR R AR D - AR
in the number of hospital inpatients and as a result, the usage of antibiotics REMEERY  ARERTGSREBBERNEHBEEE
decreased correspondingly, and with the implementation of the drug volume- DEMEIHEE T o

based purchasing policy the sale volume in some provinces declined.
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Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of RMB1,659.1 million for the Reporting
Period, representing a decrease of RMB116.9 million, or 6.6% as
compared with RMB1,776.0 million in 2020, in which the cost of sales of
Human Albumin and antibiotics decreased by RMB49.1 million and RMB
67.8 million respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gross profit of
RMB365.0 million, representing an increase of RMB91.2 million as
compared with RMB273.8 million in 2020, in which the gross profit of the
human albumin increased by RMB133.3 million and was partially offset
by the decrease of the gross profit of the antibiotics of RMB42.1 million.
The gross profit margin increased from 13.4% in 2020 to 18.0% for the
Reporting Period. The increase in profit margin was mainly due to the
higher selling price of Human Albumin compared with the last year.

Other income and gains

During the Reporting Period, other income and gains of the Group
amounted to RMB11.0 million, representing a decrease of RMB2.7 million
as compared with 2020, which mainly includes the delivery service income
amounted to RMB8.3 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB105.4 million, representing an increase of
RMB15.6 million as compared with the same period of 2020. The increase
was mainly due to the increase of marketing promotion expenses.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded administrative expenses
of RMB66.0 million, representing an increase of RMB25.4 million as
compared with the same period of 2020, which was primarily due to
the extra R&D expenses of RMB25.5 million on the development of
polycaprolactone microsphere facial filler and its materials for injection.

Other expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other expenses of
RMB7.1 million, representing a decrease of RMB5.6 million as compared
with 2020, which was mainly due to the decrease in foreign exchange
loss.

Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded finance costs of
RMB29.2 million, representing an increase of RMB20.4 million as
compared with 2020, which was mainly due to the corresponding
increase in interest expenses as a result of the increase in other interest-
bearing loans of the Group in 2021.
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Income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the income tax expenses increased by
RMB14.5 million or 81.5% to RMB32.3 million as compared with 2020.
The increase was mainly due to the increase of the Group’s revenue and
the gross profit.

Profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded the net profit of
RMB135.1 million, which increased by RMB17.0 million as compared with
the RMB118.1 million in 2020.

Inventories

Inventory balances amounted to RMB61.3 million as of 31 December
2021 (31 December 2020: RMB242.6 million), representing a decrease
of RMB181.3 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2020.
Such decrease was due to the decrease in the inventory balance of human
albumin solution mainly as a result of the sales increase.

Due to the decrease in inventory balances, the Group’s average inventory
turnover days decreased by 19 days from 52 days in 2020 to 33 days for
the Reporting Period.

Trade and bills receivables

The balance of trade receivables amounted to RMB213.6 million as of
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB578.7 million). The main
reason for the decrease of RMB365.1 million as compared with the year-
end balance of 2020 was that the Group enhanced the management of
the credit term and maintained strict control over the settlements of the
outstanding receivables.

The balance of bills receivables as of 31 December 2021 was RMB0.4
million (31 December 2020: nil) representing an increase of RMB0.4
million as compared to the year-end balance of 2020.

Prepayments, deposits, other receivables and other assets
As of 31 December 2021, the prepayments, deposits, other receivables
and other asset amounted to RMB313.0 million (31 December 2020:
RMB40.7 million), representing an increase of RMB272.3 million as
compared with the year-end balance of 2020. The increase was mainly
due to the increase of the prepayment of deposits for issuance of the
letter of credit of RMB110.4 million, the increase of the prepayment of
the refundable deposit for distribution right of RMB127.5 million and the
increase of the prepayment of the other deposits of RMB34.4 million.
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Trade payables

As of 31 December 2021, trade payables amounted to RMB422.9
million (31 December 2020: RMB700.3 million), representing a decrease
of RMB277.4 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2020,
among which payables for the purchase of Human Albumin Solution
decreased by RMB283.4 million, and offset by the increase of the payables
for the purchase of antibiotics of RMB6.0 million.

Other payables

As of 31 December 2021, other payables and accruals amounted to
RMB53.4 million (31 December 2020: RMB161.9 million), representing a
decrease of RMB108.5 million as compared with the year-end balance of
2020. The decrease was mainly due to a decrease of payables in relation
to the import agent services of RMB116.0 million.

Other payables (non-current portion)

As of 31 December 2021, non-current portion of other payables
amounted to RMB nil (31 December 2020: RMB93.4 million), because it
has been repaid in the Reporting Period.

14
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Borrowings (R
As of 31 December 2021, the Group has borrowings of RMB340.6 million ~ #;Z2021F 12 4310 * "EEKERE T ARK
in total, with details set out below: 3406 B &L BRI ¢
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Current: R :
Interest-bearing bank loans sHEIRITER 80,806 77,986
Interest-bearing other borrowings sTEEMER 127,514 -
Non-current: JEME
Interest-bearing bank loans sHEIRITER 2,244 3,042
Interest-bearing other borrowings sTEEMER 130,000 -
Total &t 340,564 81,028
Gearing ratio =Nz
At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s gearing ratio was ~ REHR - AEBMOBELRFELT ¢
calculated as follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T EERIT R A MER 340,564 81,028
Trade payables B SN FRIA 422,933 700,320
Other payables and accruals L fth B < FRIE S FER T RUB 53,424 255,368
Lease liabilities HEARE 384 1,103
Tax payables eI 12,826 21,999
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BReRBRESEED (326,052) (143,765)
Less: Pledged bank balances A BRI TSR (55,015) -
Net debt@ BEFEE 449,064 916,053
Equity e 374,886 164,429
Equity and net debt® ERLBEFFED 823,950 1,080,482
Gearing ratio®@ BB e 54.5% 84.8%

2021 3R FRRBEEERARAR
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TED

Liquidity and capital resources

BEEREXRRIR

The following table sets out a condensed summary of the Group’s TRAAEBMAFERRNNGET S REAEMERE
consolidated statement of cash flows during the Reporting Period: =
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PiEE ARET T ARBFT
Net cash from operating activities KBTS & F58 1) 305,712 137,300
Net cash used in investing activities & EBFTRIR S R 5E 2) (22,727) (46,842)
Net cash used in financing activities mEEEFTAR SR8 3) (97,108) (169,875)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash e RBESZEEWEM )
equivalents FER 185,877 (79,417)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNEMEREEFLE - JFRE (3.590) (1,574)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F ¥R & MIRESEHEY 4) 143,765 224,756
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FERIBERIBESEEY 4) 326,052 143,765

wiiz -

Notes:

1) Net cash from operating activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash inflow generated from
operating activities amounted to approximately RMB305.7 million (for the
year 2020: net cash inflow of RMB137.3 million), which was mainly due to
the increase in cash from sales and decrease in trade and bills receivables
during the Reporting Period as compared with prior year.

2) Net cash used in investing activities 2)
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash used in investing activities
amounted to approximately RMB22.7 million (for the year 2020: net cash
outflow of RMB46.8 million), which was mainly due to the purchase of items
of property, plant and equipment.

3) Net cash used in financing activities 3)

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash outflow from financing
activities amounted to approximately RMB97.1 million (for the year 2020: net
cash outflow of RMB169.9 million), which mainly included (i) the net payment
of the other payables and accruals of RMB116.0 million in relation to import
agency contracts; (i) the net payment of prepayments, other receivables
and other assets of RMB110.4 million; (iii) payment in pledged deposits of
RMB55.0 million and (iv) interest payment of RMB22.4 million. The cash
outflow was partially offset by (i) the net proceeds from the bank and other
borrowings of RMB132.1 million and (i) the proceeds of issue of new shares
of RMB75.4 million.
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4)  The following table sets out the Group's cash and cash equivalents at the end ~ 4)  T&HHFIAEFMARE RN RESEEY
of the Reporting Period:
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETT
Denominated in RMB RAREEEHE 257,299 102,572
Denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 74,138 37,263
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 47,887 3,835
Denominated in S$ PAFTANSE TEHE 1,704 55
Denominated in C$ LAngRTEHE 39 40
381,067 143,765
Treasury policies ER R

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies. Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalent are held in major financial institutions located in Mainland
China. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and the senior management of the Company reviews and
assesses the creditworthiness of the Group’s existing customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors its exposure
to a shortage of funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows from operations.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group is mainly denominated in RMB.

Foreign currency risk
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for certain items below:

. Certain bank balances are denominated in US$, HK$, Singapore
dollars and Canadian dollars; and

o Purchase of products from overseas suppliers and relevant trade
payables are denominated in US$.

The Group manages the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies by
foreign currency forward and option contracts, and does not enter into
any hedging transactions.
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Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets ARREAKREREREESTE
As the date of this report, the Group does not have any future plans for  AARIRERH - NEBEWEABEXNERNEENTR

capital assets. RIAREHE -
Capital expenditure e NEFS

The following table sets out the Group's capital expenditure for the  TR#HI|IAEBEBRIREAMMNERHE ¢
periods indicated:

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Purchase of property, plant and equipment HEEME  BMELRE 23,522 372
Addition of leasehold land ANEHE LT = 49,114
23,522 49,486
Contingent liabilities RAREE
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2021.  #ZXE20215612A318 » REEHEEREAXAE
=
Pledge of assets EEER
As of 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged ~ #ZE20215F12HA31H - KEBEZEMEENKREE
assets were set out as follows: T
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 20204
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
For obtaining bank and other borrowings ARNEBRITREMER
— Buildings —EF 73,625 70,296
— Inventories —FE 56,339 241,577
For issuance of letters of credit and billings ARFAZERE AR ESR
— Bank balances —R1THERR 55,015 -
Dividend B2
The Directors resolved not to declare any final dividend for the Reporting EEERZE TSR E RS RAEMAKARE (2020
Period (2020: Nil). F M) o

1 8 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021



BUSINESS REVIEW

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical imports,
the Group provides comprehensive marketing, promotion and channel
management (“MPCM") services for small and medium-sized overseas
pharmaceutical manufacturers. Meanwhile, the Group is the only MPCM
services provider for imported blood products in the PRC, leveraging our
quality product portfolio that focuses on blood products and nationwide
marketing and promotion network. The Group's existing product portfolio
encompasses many quality products produced by small and medium-sized
overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers, covering multiple therapeutic
areas such as anti-infective drugs and blood products, digestive system,
and cardiovascular system. Included in such products are blood products
that are in short supply in the Chinese market and prescription drugs that
can meet the high demand for high-quality drugs with excellent clinical
results among medical institutions and patients.

1. Core Products

Human Albumin

Dating back to the early 1940s, blood products have undergone
decades of fast development. Such products have grown from
Human Albumin at the very beginning to the current 20-plus
categories in three series, encompassing such sub-categories as
Human Albumin, immune globulin and blood coagulation factors.
Given the approval granted to new indications and an improved rate
of diagnosis, the Plasma Protein Therapeutics Association (PPTA)
predicts that the market demand for blood products will retain a
high-speed growth around the globe. During the last two years, as
many new plasma collection stations have been put into service, the
amount of plasma collection increased every year and production
capacity of domestic manufacturers also increased rapidly. As the
largest sales category in the market of blood products in the PRC,
Human Albumin is the only kind of blood product allowed to be
imported at the present, and its lot release of imported and domestic
categories maintains a rapid growth every year. In 2021, the annual
batch release amounted to 63.67 million vials (2020: 60.54 million
vials), among which the percentages of imported and domestic
categories were 65% and 35% respectively. Manufactured by
Octapharma, a global leading manufacturer of blood products, and
included as a Category B product in the National Reimbursement
Drug List (NRDL), the Human Albumin operated by the Group is used
to remedy the shock caused by hypovolemia, remove edema and
poisonous substances, and treat neonatal hyper-bilirubinemia. Based
on the batch release of the Human Albumin in the PRC in 2021, the
market share of the Human Albumin manufactured by Octapharma
was approximately 10%.
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Marketing Network Development

The Group provides its marketing service through its internal teams
and their cooperation with third-party promoters. Hence, one of
the Group's key development strategies is to continuously expand
the marketing network and enhance distributor and promoter
management. During the Reporting Period, the Group took “Flexible,
Professional and Efficient” as its objective, and strove to develop
its marketing team in respect of the ability of quickly responding
to market environment changes and executing operational plans
with high efficiency. Furthermore, the Group sorted out its human
resources in each division. The marketing team had its structure
streamlined and its performance management further refined, with
optimized allocation of sales resources that are invested in each
product and higher efficiency of business operation.

At the same time, the implementation of “Two-Invoice System”
took place at a faster pace in each province. To positively respond to
such implementation, the existing structure of distributor network
was comprehensively sorted out. Based on sufficient communication
with its distributors, the Group has further extended its sales
channels to end markets through the collaboration between its
internal sales team and local distributors. Originally, promoters were
allocated by region. Now, the promoters are matched with each
hospital of the region concerned, which enables the Company’s
sales network to reach the end market. Besides, the coverage of the
network has also been extended from large top Class-lll hospitals to
provincial, municipal and county hospitals, to keep improving market
penetration, thereby establishing a precision management system
that each hospital will have its respective promoters.

In addition, the Group has further improved the direct participation
of its internal marketing team in product marketing activities.
In this regard, approaches include regularly training third-party
promoters on product knowledge, hosting or taking part in medical
or pharmaceutical conferences, symposiums and product seminars
to directly partake in the academic promotion activities of products,
and extend the opinion leadership network for the main therapeutic
areas of products. All the approaches serve to ensure accurate and
timely delivery of product information to doctors. In addition to
product promotion, the Group has taken the initiative to invite third
party promoters from across the country to discuss and interpret the
major impact of national policies, to increase the added value and
attraction of the Group’s training.
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Cold Chain Storage Facility

Considering the future demand for business expansion and the
significant demand for pharmaceutical cold chains in the storage
and delivery of blood products and bio-products, the Group has
constructed a cold chain storage facility in Shuangliu District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The Group has completed the first
phase of its cold chain storage facility (15,000 square meters), which
can satisfy the Group’s storage demand and provide better control
for the quality and safety of the blood products in our product
portfolio. Additionally, we will be able to provide third parties
with high quality pharmaceutical cold-chain storage services upon
completing the second-phase construction (which includes 25,000
square meters of cold chain storage and 47,000 square meters of
research and development base), which will be a new business unit
of the Group.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not hold any material
investments, and there was no material acquisition or disposal of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Reporting Period.

Research and Development

The Group entered into a collaboration agreement with the China
Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco I”, a new
realgar-based chemical medicine for treating acute promyelocytic
leukemia. The collaboration aims for the upstream extension of
the Group's business and the future provision of a new medicine
for patients in the therapeutic area. Currently it is in the pilot
experiments. During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred
RMBO.7 million as the research and development expenses for
developing Sinco |.

The Group entered into the Master Cooperation Agreement and
the Technological Development Agreements in relation to the
development of polycaprolactone microsphere facial filler (“Girl
Needle”) and its materials for injection with Beijing Nuokangda
Pharmaceuticals Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Nuokangda”). The
"Girl Needle” developed in cooperation with Beijing Nokangda,
with Ellansé® as the control, uses PCL and CMC of biomedical
material matrix from product formulation to preparation technology
analysis, and develops semi-permanent injectable filling products.
In the follow-up, the Group will develop a series of products
"PCL+X" relying on polycaprolactone raw materials, and derive a
variety of medical beauty products, which are suitable for various
parts. The total R&D expenses will amount to RMB88.50 million.
It is anticipated that the Technological Development Project will
be completed within 49 months. During the Reporting Period, the
Group incurred RMB25.5 million as the research and development
expenses.
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FUTURE AND OUTLOOK

In 2022, the COVID-19 epidemic may still continue to affect the global
economy. Under a well control of the epidemic, the global economy is
gradually recovering. It is expected that the volume of plasma collection
in 2022 will recover to pre-epidemic level, and there will be an increase
compared to the last year. As a result, the number of batches released
of the Group will increase accordingly. Taking into consideration of that
current demand for Human Albumin in China is far less than of developed
countries, it reflects that the Chinese market has huge potential. Although
the supply will increase, the price of Human Albumin in forthcoming
year may still be stable compared to the 2021. In addition, considering
the population base, the demand for Human Albumin will continue to
increase in the future.

People’s medical awareness has been influenced since the emergence
of the COVID-19 epidemic. With the continuing epidemic in 2022, the
medical needs of people will continuously increase. Because of the clinical
necessity for Human Albumin and the fact that there is no corresponding
substitute product in the short term, it is expected that the demand for
Human Albumin will remain strong for the long-run. In addition, after
the implementation of the “Two-Invoice System” policy in China, sales
channels have become flatter, and manufacturers can directly reach end
customers. The business minds of manufacturers are having fundamental
changes from the original price-oriented thinking to a focus on academic
promotion and brand improvement. In recent years, products represented
by Human Albumin have shown a rapid recovery. Under these
circumstances, the Group will continue with its sales and development
strategies in optimizing the marketing network and the product portfolio,
with plasma products being the core therapeutic area of the Group.

To leverage the Group's expertise and experience in the provision of
imported pharmaceuticals products, in 2022, the Group will develop its
medical aesthetic industry chain and gradually establish the dual business
segments of pharmaceuticals products and medical aesthetic products as
its business development direction. It is believed that such strategy could
serve a foundation for the Group to develop its expertise and resources
in the establishment of its own R&D center to develop, produce and
sell medical aesthetic products gradually. Capitalizing on the Group’s
established pharmaceutical marketing and promotion pipeline could
bring synergy effect to the marketing and sales of such new medical
aesthetic products which could enable the Group to achieve sustainable
development in the long run.

22
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Furthermore, the Group will continue to enhance the development of its
internal control and risk management system, pay more attention to and
fulfill its corporate social responsibilities throughout the governance of the
Group. A great platform for staff's career development will be offered by
the Group; and the Group will continuously create a greater value for the
shareholders and the stakeholders of the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 120 employees. For
the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group were RMB17.6
million (2020: RMB11.7 million).

The Group's employee remuneration policy is determined by factors such
as remuneration in respect of the local market, the overall remuneration
standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate operating efficiency
and employee performance. The Group conducts performance appraisals
once every year for its employees, the results of which are applied
in annual salary reviews and promotional assessments. The Group’s
employees are considered for annual bonuses according to certain
performance criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance contributions
are made by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance with the
relevant PRC regulations.

The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness and improve customer service quality. The Group did
not experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Company adopted a share option scheme to recognize
the contribution by certain employees of the Group, and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for their continuing support in the
operation and development of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The principal risks and uncertainties identified by the Company which
may have material and adverse impact on the Company’s performance or
operation are summarized below. There may be other principal risks and
uncertainties in addition to those set out below which are not known to
the Company or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

o Failure to maintain relationships with existing suppliers — The Group
currently sources all the products in portfolio from limited suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents.

o Exchange rate fluctuation — The Group'’s purchase of products from
the overseas suppliers is denominated in US$, and certain items of
bank balances, other receivables, bank borrowings and bonds are
mainly denominated in US$ and HKS.

o Decrease in profit margin due to increase in cost, decrease in selling
prices and competition.

o Experience prolonged delays or significant disruptions to the supply
of the products.

The Company believes that risk management is essential to the Group’s
efficient and effective operation. The Group’s management assists the
Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group's business,
and participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal
control measures, and to ensure such measures are properly implemented
in daily operational management.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Human resources is one of the most important assets of the Group. The
Group strives to motivate its employees by providing them with a clear
career path as well as comprehensive and professional training courses. In
addition, the Group also offers competitive remuneration packages to its
employees, including basic salary, certain benefits and other performance-
based incentives.

The Group purchases imported pharmaceutical products from overseas
suppliers, either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and
generates revenue by on-selling them to hospitals and pharmacies
through distributors and deliverers. The Group’s suppliers or their sales
agents have granted the Group the exclusive rights to market, promote
and manage sales channels for their products in China. We maintain a
stable and long-term relationship with its suppliers by providing them
access to the growing Chinese market with steady sales growth.
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The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors, who on-sell
the products to hospitals and pharmacies either directly or indirectly
through their sub-distributors. The Group maintains stable and long-term
relationship with its distributors by providing them guidance, training
and support to carry out more targeted field marketing and promotion
activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is primarily engaged in MPCM for imported pharmaceutical
products, a line of business that does not have material impact on the
environment. The key environmental impact from the Group’s operation
is related to electricity, water and paper consumption. The Group is fully
aware of the importance of sustainable environmental development, and
has implemented the following measures to encourage environmental
protection and energy conservation:

o Promoting paperless office
o Encouraging low-carbon commuting
e Ensuring reasonable energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not incur any material cost of
compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s business and operations are subject to related laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. During the Reporting Period, the Group have complied with
all related laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin
Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC, which would have significant impact on
the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT FINANCING EVENTS AND USE OF
PROCEEDS

Subscription of new shares under general mandate and
use of proceeds

On 23 July 2021 (after trading hours of the Stock Exchange), the
Company entered into subscription agreements with not less than six
subscribers (the “Subscription Agreements”), pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, an aggregate of 169,000,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$0.5 per subscription
share. Subsequently, all conditions under the Subscription Agreements
have been fulfilled and the completion took place on 28 September 2021.
The aggregate gross proceeds from the subscription was approximately
HK$84.50 million and the aggregate net proceeds from the Subscription
was approximately HK$84.06 million (after deduction of commission
and other expenses of the Subscription), representing a net issue price of
approximately HK$0.497 per subscription share. The Company intends to
use the entire net proceeds arising from the Subscription of approximately
HK$84.06 million as to:

(@) approximately 70% of the net proceeds, or approximately HK$58.84
million, to be used for settlement of cost arising from procurement
of pharmaceutical products; and

approximately 30% of the net proceeds, or approximately HK$25.22
million, to be used for the deposit of issuance of the letter of credit
for purchasing pharmaceutical products from the overseas suppliers
by the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 23
July 2021, 27 July 2021 and 28 September 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross proceeds from the subscription
amounted to approximately HK$84.06 million, and approximately
HK$66.37 million was used, of which (i) approximately HK$58.84
million was used for settlement of cost arising from procurement of
pharmaceutical products and (ii) approximately HK$7.53 million was
used for the deposit of issuance of the letter of credit for purchasing
pharmaceutical products from the overseas suppliers by the Group, and
the entire sum of approximately HK$25.22 million was utilised for the said
purpose as at the date of this report.
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Placing of new shares under general mandate and use of
proceeds (the “Placing”)

On 7 December 2021 (after trading hours of the Stock Exchange), the
Company entered into a conditional placing agreement with Silverbricks
Securities Company Limited (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to issue an aggregate of 160,000,000
Shares (the “Placing Shares”), and the Placing Agent agreed to procure
not less than six independent individual, institutional or other professional
investors (the “Placees”) to subscribe for, on a best effort basis, an
aggregate of 160,000,000 Placing Shares at the placing price of HK$1.29
per Placing Share. The net proceeds from the Placing, after deduction of
the commission for the Placing and other related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$194.9 million. The Company intends that as to:

(@) approximately 40% of the net proceeds of the Placing
(approximately HK$78.0 million) will be used for the development
of polycaprolactone microsphere facial filler and its materials for
injection; and

approximately 60% of the net proceeds of the Placing (approximately
HK$116.9 million) will be used for the strategic acquisition/
development of new projects/products in the field of medical
aesthetic including but not limited to acquisition of medical
aesthetic organisations or investing in medical aesthetic projects and
development of new medical aesthetic products.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
7 December 2021, 30 December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the
Placing was not completed and no proceed was received by the Company.
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SUBSEQUENT SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Placing

All the conditions precedent set out in the Placing Agreement (together
with its supplemental agreement entered into between the Company
and the Placing Agent on 30 December 2021) have been fulfilled and the
completion under the Placing Agreement took place on 3 January 2022.

The acquisition of Demei Company (as defined below)

On 20 January 2022, the Company (or its designated affiliate) entered
into a letter of intent with all beneficial owners of Deyang Demei Medical
Aesthetic Clinic (General Partnership)* (“Demei Clinic”) in relation to
potential acquisition of the equity interest in the target after Demei Clinic
completes restructuring and conversion. On 22 March 2022, Sichuan
Sinco Biotech Limited Company* (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Mr. Huang Zhijian (a connected person of the Company,
being the son of Mr. Huang, an executive Director, chairman of the
Board and substantial shareholder of the Company) entered into (i) each
of the respective equity transfer agreements between Deyang Demei
Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company* (“Demei Company”), being
the target after Demei Clinic completes restructuring and conversion,
and other parties, and (ii) a loan agreement (with a set of VIE contractual
arrangements to be entered into upon the completion under the said
equity transfer agreements) for purpose of acquiring the entire equity
interest in Demei Company at an aggregate consideration of up to
RMB95,000,000.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 20
January 2022 and 22 March 2022.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is not aware of any material
event requiring disclosure, that has taken place subsequent to 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this announcement.
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Basis of Preparation

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “HKEx") as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and complies with the reporting principle of ‘comply
or explain’ and compilation in relation to key performance indicators
("KPIs") in the environmental area under ESG Guide.

The data and information cited in the Report are referenced from
the archived questionnaires, records, statistics and research of the
Company. The Report covers an information period that spans from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, exactly the financial year
covered by the 2021 annual report of the Company.

The Report encompasses the information of the Company and all its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the ‘Group’).

Contact
Should you have any query or feedback on the Report, please
contact us via the following methods:

a. Address: E5-1805, Global Center, 1700 Tianfu Avenue North,
Hi-tech Industrial Development Zone, Chengdu City, Sichuan
Province

b.  Tel: +86 28 62912988

c.  Fax: +86 28 62912922

d.  Email: sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com

e.  Official website: http://www.sinco-pharm.com

Overview

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical
imports, the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for
small and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers.
Meanwhile, the Group, leveraging its quality product portfolio
that centers on blood products and nationwide marketing and
promotion network, is the only MPCM service provider for imported
blood products in the PRC. Currently, the Group’s product portfolio
includes blood products, antibiotics, and other pharmaceutical
imports that enjoy high-speed growth or a sizable market.
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Core Values

Constant in pursuing excellence of product quality and
pharmaceutical technology services, the Group aspires to become a
top partner for overseas pharmaceutical businesses who intends to
enter the Chinese pharmaceutical market. Sticking to its core values
‘Simplicity, Innovation, National, Collaboration, and Openness’,
the Group wishes to deliver good corporate governance and fulfill
its environmental and social responsibilities, to realize sustainable
development and safeguard the investors, staff, suppliers,
distributors, governments, communities, financial institutions and
other stakeholders.

Stakeholder Identification and Communications

The Group will continue to maintain close contact and
communications with the stakeholders, and receives valuable opinion
from them each year. In order to decide the content and direction of
the Annual Report for the Year, the Group referred to the analysis
results of material concern raised by the stakeholders last year and
the relevant response.

Significant Subjects for Stakeholders and Response
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ERARR

Focus

BB

Means of Communication

FEEBELA

Response and Feedback

RPER R R

Shareholders/Investors

BR/REE

Continuous, stable investment
returns

Timely information disclosure

Corporate operation in
compliance with laws
and regulations

TRISENREDR
MENEREKE
ARNEEESR

Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements

General meetings

Roadshows/telephone conferences/
meet-and-greets

Media communication mechanism

Press conferences

Opinion monitoring

Consultation via telephone/email/website

Investor visits
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Publishing AGM notices and
resolutions according to
regulations

Timely disclosing corporate
information

Publishing disclosure
announcements and regular
reports according to regulations

Responding to email/telephone
inquiries and receiving on-site
investigation from investors
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Type of Stakeholders Focus Means of Communication Response and Feedback
s AER BIEH TEBEAN R FEER B8
Staff Training and career development  Direct communication Providing a healthy and safe work
Remuneration and benefits Performance appraisal environment
Health and safety Medical checkups Establishing a fair mechanism for
Training programmes promotion
Staff opinion surveys Organizing staff activities
Safety management
8T B ERBEER BEEER RUER 2N ITIERE
FroEaiER BmER B ATFRETHEE
fRREZ S Bin BEE TS
EllARIE
BIBREMN
ZEER
Suppliers Standard supplier management  Execution of orders/contracts Performing contracts as agreed
and purchase process Direct communication Maintaining long-term
Timely performance of contracts ~ Supplier management system collaboration with excellent
Corporate reputation Supplier archives suppliers
Timely payment
Ensuring pharmaceutical quality
and safety
Keeping complete supplier archives
e HREOHEHEELRERE T8/ ARNT BHBETER
REETARKE BEEER BERHEBHRERAGHE
TEEE HIERERGE R TR
HIERIER BREDDERS
ERHHERER
Distributors A robust process of customer Daily communication Enhancing quality management
service Aftersales service Performing contracts as agreed
A complete mechanism of Customer satisfaction surveys Providing distributors with
information communication Customer archives pharmaceutical knowledge
A stable and safe supply of Corporate tours/visits training and marketing support
pharmaceutical products Sufficient communication
Timely response to requests
R R HE P RBIRE AEER maEEE
TEEM{E R AR EERS BRAOETER
BT Z2MEmEtE EPmEENE RS E R A B
SR H) K s [l fE EFRE LIRS
TELE/ED FDBB
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Type of Stakeholders Focus Means of Communication Response and Feedback
s AER BIEH TEBEAN R FEER B8
Governments/ Corporate operation in Government visits Strict complying with laws and
Communities compliance with laws Participation in government requlations
and regulations meetings and regular visits Enhancing safety management
Contributing to community Government projects Actively assuming social
development Community service responsibility
[Z{Sp g ARNERES B 2#EE BB TERER
ERHRER SHERTEE  THFT Mgz EE
BIFEE RiEEEHERE
I RS
Financial Institutions Good corporate credit, Financial reports and Timely repayment of loans
and stable capability of announcements Maintaining good cooperative
loan repayment Visits relations
Stable corporate development Direct communication
SRS RUFMEEER  RENEE  UBRERAS RIFERER
2 2EIRE REFRFNEFEBE
RENCEEER HEER
6. Social 6. #HE

To perform social responsibility, the Group always attaches great
importance to the details of staff, product management and
community benefit at work to provide a fair and equitable treatment
to the related stakeholders of the Group and deeply believes that
this management direction is a long-term investment for the Group.

a. Employment

The Group has been aware of a number of laws and
regulations on the protection of the labor force established
by the People’s Republic of China and has strictly complied
with their requirements to carry out all of the relevant laws
and regulations when employing staff members. The relevant
laws and regulations include: PRC Labor Law, Employment
Promotion Law, Labor Contract Law, Tentative Provisions on
Salary Payment, Regulations on the Management of Housing
Provident Fund, Labor Dispute Mediation and Arbitration Law,
Regulation on Work-related Injury Insurances, and local labor
laws and regulations. The Group also ensures the entitlement
to all statutory social insurance and statutory holidays of its
staff members. Furthermore, to provide staff members with
better welfare, the Group has formulated Remuneration
Management System, Staff Fund Management System, and
Staff Reward and Punishment Provisions, and also provides
staff members with allowances for transport and lunch,
staff activities and group tours, with an aim at achieving fair
treatment for all staff members of the Group. In addition to the
said welfare, the Group also attaches great importance to raise
intrinsic value of the staff. Therefore, the Group provides staff
members at all levels with targeted development and incentive
schemes, and clear and fair promotion opportunities through
performance appraisal according to the Group’s Performance
Management System.
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Employment Indicators

EREER
Staff by Gender Staff by Age
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During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a staff outflow of 12, representing a turnover rate* of 9.1%.
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Departed Staff by Gender Departed Staff by Age
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* Turnover rate = Number of staff departed during the Reporting Period/(Headcount during the Reporting Period + Number of staff departed
during the Reporting Period)
o ORAER=REHNBRBE TAR(REFNAB+REHABBETE)
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The Group recruits labourers in accordance with the law and fulfils
the signing, modification, dissolution or termination of labour
contracts with all employees in accordance with national laws
and regulations and relevant internal company requirements.
An employee’s employment relationship cannot take effect until
both parties have agreed and signed a labour contract voluntarily.
The human resources management department of the Group
ensures that employees are over 18 years old and can be legally
hired by checking their valid IDs. The employment contract clearly
requires that the personal information provided by the applicant
must be authentic and reliable. If fraud is found, the Group can
terminate its labour relationship with the employee in accordance
with the rules and regulations of the Company. In addition, the
Group clearly defines and explains the paid holidays, working
hours and attendance system of employees. Employees’ work
hours and vacation policies are specified according to the detailed
implementation rules of attendance management and local
employment laws. Employees who work overtime during non-
office hours may receive appropriate overtime pay or compensation
holidays in accordance with labour regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group strictly implemented measures including, but not
limited to, the above measures to eliminate child labour and enforce
related legal risks.

Under the premise of strict compliance with relevant national and
local laws and regulations, the Group designated the Employee
Management Manual of Sinco for all employees, covering
employment, KPI, employee relations, salary and benefits, etc., to
make employees rule-based and enhance employees a sense of
responsibility and belonging.

In addition to the existing staff policies, the Group'’s strict recruitment
system can ensure that it enjoys comprehensive human resources
allocation. The Group has always been recruiting talents externally
and keeping contact with recruitment agencies, universities and
colleges to attract potential talents to join the Group. It has set
up a “Staff Referral Award” to encourage its staff members to
recommend capable talents to join the Group.

Moreover, the Group ensures all the job applicants and staff enjoy
equal opportunities for employment, with zero tolerance of any
discrimination over gender, age, ethnicity, nationality and disability.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a staff of 120 in total (49%
being male staff and 51% being female staff). During the Reporting
Period, no employment discrimination has occurred within the
Group.

FEBREREST - RREZERERMAF
NEERESIE 2 RERE R TRETS P AR
R BE - @RS - BETHERREEESES
—HREYERRISBHERZ BRI ALY ° K
SEANERERIBEBZEETHERI N EMN
HRETFRAET/ AR L » ATEERE - &
BERTRAEEREREMREOEAER/SE
BUHEBER 5 - MBEFERBR - REERKR
RERERIER FREMBBRIE - I K&
ESE TR - TERENREHHIEETH
HESREMEE © RIFZHEREHRAMA NI 5
XERRERE TERBREHMEREK - BTHE
FEWMARFRIINIE - AIRIBRSEERWEEE R0
WESMER - R|EIA - AREBRNITE
FRERRINIA_ LB FEAM B R FEE TR G185
ERRER -

EBARETEEME WA B@EAREROARET -
AEBHEMEETHEE(ANEEIERETF
) BEERE - EX BEIBERFERNE
NE - RETAEAE  BRETEERNEE

BRTHIRAR THRRIN  NEBEEZENHRE
EREFERAKBEHB TENANEREE - A%
E—ERREIMNEEOTR - TREADRE#E
kEERRRBHE - BRRAEENHAT I
AREE - RTHBMETEBBRNHAT N
A REEREINEHEERLE] -

BE AEEAMEEMEME TREFEWN
MEMS  BIATEMAERMER - T R
Pk - B4R - BEmBAR A EEENE AT
Ao 2021512 A318  AEBETHASA
120N + BAG LD R E49%H151% © Ak Ef
W NEBRE AR E R EN -

2021 54 BHABBRRARAF 35



Environmental, Social and Governance Report RiE - &K

36

Health and Safety

Staff health and safety are also areas that the Group attached
great importance to. The Group, at all times, strictly complies
with all requirements of relevant regulations, including the
PRC Labor Law, Fire Prevention Law, Occupational Health and
Safety Management System, Special Regulation on the Labor
Protection of Female Staff, Measures for the Ascertainment
of Work-related Injuries, and the Regulation on Work-related
Injury Insurances.

The Group strives to offer its staff a safe work environment
and minimize all potential risks on health and safety. We
conduct ongoing risk assessment and inspection on work
environment with certain high-risk to mitigate the risks. During
the Reporting Period, the Group implemented a series of health
management measures, so that its staff members can work in
a safe environment free of occupational hazards:

Staff medical examination

Fire Drills

Regular maintenance of electrical equipment

Traffic safety study for drivers

During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred no work-
related fatalities among its staff; nor did any staff lose any
work days due to work-related injuries.

/4

Fire Drills in 2021
20215 HBEE
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C.

Development and Training

Improving the quality and techniques of staff members is a
momentum for the Group’s development. To ensure effective
implementation of staff training schemes, the Group has
formulated Management Measures for Staff Training, which
expressly sets out an integrated system and implementation
process that encompass induction, internal training and
external training:

I. Induction
New recruits are introduced to the general knowledge
of the Group, such as corporate culture, product
knowledge, basic internal control system and process, the
work process of the department concerned, and details
of the work position.

ii. — Internal Training

Based on the actual demands at work, the Group applies
its internal training resources to the communications on
professional knowledge and skills, to share experience.
Such training takes place in the following forms: self-
learning with shared training materials on the Group's
online work platform, and discussions at regular
departmental meetings, communication sessions for
business teams and inter-departmental sharing sessions.

iii. — External Training
The Group encourages its staff members to improve their
professional techniques and, given their efficient work
arrangement, attend training and policy seminars hosted
by external institutions.

In order to share and inherit the Group’s knowledge and
experience with internal staff members, the Group has
formulated its Internal Lecturer Management Measures
to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of training. At
the beginning of each year, human resources department
formulates annual training scheme according to feedback
from the previous year, the Group’s strategic planning and
the actual demand of each department, and prepares training
curricular and course content on a quarterly basis.
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Training-related Indicators
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Staff Training Ratio by Gender
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Labor Standards

The Group's policies on staff recruitment and treatment are in
strict compliance with relevant national and local regulations,
including the PRC Labor Law, Law on the Protection of Minors,
and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor. The
Staff Manual of the Group clearly states that child labor shall
not be allowed. Relevant departments also regularly monitor
employment-related information and data, to ensure there is
no child labor or forced labor.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not discover any use
of child labor or forced labor.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is well aware that effective management of
procurement is the most critical part to maintaining quality and
safety of product and service. To systemize the complicated
procurement process of pharmaceutical imports, the Group has
formulated procurement business standardized documents for
various pharmaceutical products. Such documents are based on
the Management Regulation on the Procurement of Imported
Products with reference to the regulations of special authorities
such as the PRC General Administration of Customs, Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau, and China Food and Drug
Administration (CFDA). In addition to the internal management
system, the Group has established a good relationship with
its suppliers and kept liaison, exchanging news on the market
updates and sales data of products for coordinating and
adjusting procurement and sales plans accordingly.

Prior to establishing any partnership with suppliers or its sales
agents, the following factors are considered by the Group:

1. Product compliance

2. Brand influence

3. Strategic synergy with the Group's development
4. Prospects in the Chinese market

5. Other potential risks
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The Group appraises its existing suppliers according to
the Appraisal Measures for Suppliers, by analyzing the
current status and existing issues of suppliers, conduct a full
investigation of the performance of suppliers in terms of
equipment management, quality control, delivery agreements
and service levels, etc., to ensure that suppliers cooperating
with the Group can maintain quality and establish long-
term stable cooperative supply relationship with the Group.
Currently, the Group's suppliers are mainly small and medium-
sized pharmaceutical manufacturers from overseas countries,
including Austria, Sweden, Germany, Cyprus and France.

To protect information privacy of the suppliers, the Group
continually enhances its information security, establishing
targeted security principals for the business network, office
network, servers, cyber computer room management and
controlled visits. The staff members are required to sign
an agreement to avoid any personal leakage of private
information.

The Group also considers possible environmental and social
risks, such as political incidents, terrorist events, crisis events,
wars, public emergency events and other events that are
difficult to predict and prevent. In response to these risks,
a contingency team of the Group will formulate multi-plan
contingency measures in advance for some occasional but
highly disruptive incidents to be well-prepared for emergencies.

Product Responsibility

As the Group is a member of the pharmaceutical industry
and the products are prescription drugs, the product quality
is crucial and potential risks must be properly controlled.
To ensure product quality and safety, the Group strictly
complies with all national laws and regulations on product
safety, including the PRC Pharmaceutical Administration Law
and its Implementation Regulations, Good Supply Practice
for Pharmaceutical Products and its Implementation Rules.
Besides, the Group has a systematic system for managing
pharmaceutical quality in place with active cooperation with
the regulators in their inspections. The Group proactively
provides internal training on the knowledge of safety and
quality and promotes the policies, systems and concepts of
quality management.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021
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In respect of hardware, the Group has always been storing
pharmaceutical products with advanced technology and
facilities and operates a product mix composed of quality
pharmaceutical imports with an outstanding track record of
safety. The Group also has been cooperating with creditworthy
collaborating parties of long-term partnership on the provision
of warehousing and logistics services. Apart from that, the
Group has built its cold chain storage facility with advanced
temperature-control technology and a precision system
of quality control in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province, which can ensure a more stable quality control for
the Group.

The Group has a comprehensive system for process of quality
inspection and product recall, establishes and strictly executes the
policies on the Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product
Procurement, the Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product
Reception, the Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product
Acceptance, and the Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical
Product Return, ensuring that all product quality and safety operation
programs have been taken place in standard processes. In addition
to this, we have formulated relevant management document such as
Distributor Management Measures, Sales Management System and
the Code of Conduct on Customer Servicing to protect the security
and privacy of its customer information.

The Group has no corresponding measures for advertising
and labeling, because all of its products are prescription drugs
which are prohibited from advertising according to national
regulations, and because CFDA issues the permit on product
packaging and specifications.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recall any
product due to product quality issues, nor did it receive any
complaints about its products and services. All products are
examined by the Institute for Drug Control after their customs
clearance, with an examination report of pharmaceutical
imports issued.

ek

M £ NEE — AR ST A R A
RERTESR  mMAMKENERESRY
REBLHELZITHMNEEEDER - K
SENT-—HEEZEEERY AREGIEH
FOMOBEREEFERYRRE - @A
E-r CREETE) B RKE T E R A

RER RIS SOE NIRRT R B
E’JEET FIRG - WRBASEEE 215
il IR E AR M BRI -

AEBRBETENEERR MEMD R
B TRERAL R BRARATTC B PR R B TR
B) (ERPEEEHE)  (HEaikKE
BHEIMKHEmE G ERHIE)FRR - #
RITBEREE T 2RIFRAUBEED
REFREAETT © Bk 2o - JIPIIRZL
(RHEmEEIE)  (HEEENE) (F
RIESTRADEFHERXY  REEFE
B 22 2 MR o

MR AEENEER
REPNSETES
KHAEHHERE
B MAEBERE
i3y

w o Im\} FN

HEHA - AEEALRAEREEMAE
i B Bl ERAIER - IFAREREERBER
ERMRENEF  TEERIEBEEE
HER AT T ERRBR I B O SRR
BmEE -

SRR ERAR 41

2021 3R EIRIAE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRI%

42

Anti-corruption

The Group has been advocating honesty, integrity and
responsibility as its ethical concepts, opposes any form of
corrupt behavior, such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group has formulated its Anti-corruption and
Anti-bribery Management Regulations and its Staff Code of
Conduct against Corruption and Bribery, according to national,
regulations and the actual industrial condition. The Group also
requires its staff and partners to sign an Anti-corruption and
Anti-bribery Letter of Undertaking on a mutual agreed basis,
included anti-corruption into the staff induction system, and
set up a comprehensive reporting procedure for reporting
non-compliance behaviors and protecting whistleblower. The
Group's internal audit department will also conduct audits to
executives in sales who are departing.

During the Reporting Period, no case of corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering occurred within the Group, with
confirmation that it strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations such as the PRC Criminal Law and its Judicial
Interpretation, Criminal Procedure law and its Judicial
Interpretation, Interpretation on Several Issues Concerning the
Applicable Laws to Handling Criminal Cases of Embezzlement
and Bribery, and Anti-Money Laundering Law.

Community investment

Community charities and public welfare have always been one
of the considerations for business development of the Group.
The Group attaches great importance to each stakeholder
who is affected by its business scope. In order to maintain
good relationship, the Group keeps close liaison with them,
which includes participating in community activities to ensure
the business development of the Group has fully taken into
account the interests of the community.

i. Operating charity funds

In March 2017, the Group has established Sinco Charitable
Foundation (EIR}AZEZE4) named after the enterprise
in Chengdu Charity Federation and continuing operation
in 2021. The fund aims at providing assistance to the
impoverished such that they can receive better medical
treatment; improving the unhealthy living habit and
health conditions of low income patients; enhancing
publicity of health knowledge and changing outdated
concept of getting medical treatment.
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ii. — Organizing staff activities

While respecting and safeguarding the rights and interests
of staff members, the Group is also attentive to their
physical and mental health, and committed to creating
a beneficial work environment and a harmonious work
atmosphere for them. To do that, the Group has hosted
diverse activities, such as annual gatherings, birthday
parties, sports activities and annual travels, during which
staff members can relax and balance work with life. This
also makes the Group a more cohesive community.

Zoige Prairie Tour in 2021

2021 FHEREER 2K

7. Environmental

a.

Emissions

The Group operates all relevant business in strict compliance
with the PRC Environmental Protection Law, Law on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, Law on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, and Law on
the Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise, as well as other laws and requirements on environmental
protection to ensure that the Group did not cause any negative
impact to the environment.
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However, as the Group is mainly engaged in the MPCM, it
will not cause significant impact to the environment. The
Group also consumes no direct combustion fuel other than
transportation, therefore it does not produce any hazardous
wastes. Instead, the emissions mainly comprise the exhaust of
all vehicles of the Group, the greenhouse gases emitted during
its operation, and such non-hazardous wastes as scrap paper,
plastics and house refuse.

During the Reporting Period, the number of staff trips increased
considerably due to the expansion and rapid development of
the Group’s business scope. In the context of COVID-19, the
Group, in consideration of staff safety, advised employees to
use fewer public transport with massive passenger flow to
avoid the risk of infection. Therefore, vehicle exhaust emissions
increased significantly by 42.31% during the Reporting Period.

In the future, on the premise of ensuring safety trips of its
employees, the Group will formulate corresponding measures
for trips to reduce the environmental pollution caused by
vehicle emissions. For example, a vehicle shall take more
than one staff member when traveling to reduce its vacancy
rate. New energy vehicles are used whenever possible. For
destinations within a short distance, employees may travel by
sharing bikes or on foot with proper personal protection.

Starting from 2021, the cold chain warehouse of the Group
which located at Chengdu Shuangliu Free Trade Zone was in
full operation. Since the storage of the Group’s core product
human albumin requires strict temperature conditions,
temperature control facilities are required in the cold chain
warehouse to ensure human albumin stores in a compliant
temperature condition. During the Reporting Period, electricity
consumption of the Group increased slightly by approximately
1.59% compared with last year, which was controlled in a
reasonable growth range.
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During the Reporting Period, there was an increase of
approximately 11.25% in the Group’s emission of CO, which
arose from flight travel. The main reason is that with the
continuous growth of the Group’s business and the effective
control of the COVID-19, the marketing and sales staff increase
the number of their business trips and the frequencies of flying.
As a result, the CO, emissions from flying have increased.

During the Reporting Period, the CO, emissions from
processing scrap papers decreased significantly. The Group
continues to implement paperless office measures to encourage
employees to greatly reduce the use of paper in workplace.
Therefore, there was a significant decrease of 45.74% in
the CO, emissions from processing scrap papers during the
Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the CO, emissions from
processing sewage were nearly the same with last year. The
Group has continued to implement water-saving and energy-
saving measures and has received strong support from
employees. During the Reporting Period, the CO, emissions
from processing sewage increased by approximately 3.13%.
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Major Emission Indicators FEHWDIEIE

Increase/

Year (Decrease)

Unit F1 (i)

Emissions of Vehicle Exhaust E@HER K By 2021 2020 %
NO, Emissions AALYINOYEERE KilogramT 52 114.39 80.38 42.31
S0, Emissions ZE/EH(SO,) B E Kilogram T 52 0.11 0.11 0.00
Particles Emissions FERY(PM)BE R E Kilogram ¥ 52 10.44 7.16 45.81
Increase/

Year (Decrease)

Unit F4 (/)

CO, Emissions ZELB(CO R E By 2021 2020 %
From Electricity Consumption REESE Tonneli# 126.88 124.90 1.59
From Flights T £ Tonneli 74.55 67.01 11.25
From Processing Scrap Paper RIBREMES Tonneli# 11.41 21.03 (45.74)
From Processing Sewage BIEAKEE Tonnel® 0.64 0.62 3.13
Total At Tonneli 213.48 213.56 (0.04)
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Resource Consumption

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s energy and water
consumption increased slightly compared with last year.
The Group's electricity and water consumption increased
compared with last year, primarily due to the development
of the Company’s business and the increase in the number
of employees. In this regard, the Group will carry out various
measures such as water, electricity and energy saving plans to
support environmental protection.

Energy and Water Consumption Indicators

BREHM

WEHA - NREERRIKERERE R Z
FREAEMN LK - T2REARAFE
BOBRMETABRNEN  SEAEE
MAKEREFRLAEN - Bk - K
SEFSHEITEK  BIE - AR EIEE
FEIASTRFER IR

BENR KK EIRAFEFEIE

Increase/
Year (Decrease)
Unit 4 #Cr)
Energy consumption BEFERR B 2021 2020 %
Total Electricity Consumption HHEE Kilowatt Per Hour ELfs 131,120.00 129,423.00 1.31
Total Gasoline Consumption FURERERE Kilogram¥ 5 7,658.70 7,485.70 2.31
Total Water Consumption HBREKE Cubic Meter3Z 77K 1,516.90 1,468.27 3.31
The Environment and Natural Resources ¢ REBRIXARER
The business of the Group does not cause any material impact AEEMEENEBHETGLUIRTRKR
on the environment and natural resources. RETRERBARTE -
Climate-related Issues d. RENEESE

Due to the business nature of the Group, we do not expect
physical risks associated with climate change to have a
significant impact on the Group’s operations. However, with
the global trend of greenhouse gas reduction, the transition
to cleaner electricity and more stringent environmental
regulations are anticipated to result in certain operating costs,
such as electricity tariff, to increase in the upcoming years. To
mitigate this potential risk, the Group has developed strategies
and targets to reduce our environmental footprint. The Group
will stay alert on such issues and include any new observations
in subsequent reports.
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The guideline to the content &R & 5|

Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting

Guide Aspects and General

Disclosure
R - HEREAR Pages/Notes
EEBER—BRE Description it BE BT
A. Environmental
ARE
Aspect A1: Emissions
JEEAT - HEY)
General Disclosures A1 (@) The policies; and ERBERIBEEREDR - MK 43-45
— i RAimeges - AEREEEE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and ¥ EAEHY -
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer (@ BX: &
relating to air and greenhouse gas (b) BFEHETABEATED
emissions, discharges into water and land, AR AR
and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste
KPI A1.1  The types of emissions and respective BEpUiEsE M AR BE R EUE 43-45
A SRS emissions data
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and AERBEHNERTE 43-45
intensity
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and MEABEREYEE NETE The Group did not
intensity produce hazardous
wastes
TEERBES
BERERY
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and FiE4BEEEYEE REE The Group did
intensity not produce non-
hazardous wastes
REBREE
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate AU EBE 2 MR R TS 43-45
emissions and results achieved R
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- I RE A E N EEEZYN The Group did not

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved

TR BIREE SR
SRR

2021 FF3f EMERBEERAR DT

produce any waste
REBRBE
HERIEED
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General

HERERRE

Disclosure
B HAREARS Pages/Notes
EEBER—BRE Description it BE BT
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
JEEAZ - EFEH
General Disclosures A2 Policies on the efficient use of resources,  BXFERER(BIEFER ~ K& 46
—MAREE including energy, water and other raw HAiBEM R RS
materials
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption IZFEEE| DI EE KRS EEE 46
R iE by type in total and intensity RERENEE
A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity ~ #& ﬁmi&%ﬁ;
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency At pE R ARG T E LTS 46
initiatives and results achieved 2
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue it SREUE R /KR _E A1 A 1A The Group did not

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished

products

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
JEBEA3 : IRIFERXAER

General Disclosure A3 Policies on minimizing the issuer’s

—MAREE significant impact on the environment
and natural resources

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts

RASRAE IRE of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them
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BIE T AR N RAERE
RERFEHBR

WA EEEBHRFELAAER
MEAZZNRERNEEEH
FENTTE

have any issue in
sourcing water that is
fit for purpose
REBREE
el SKERE A 7K
TRAIERE

The Group

did not use

any packaging
material
REEREFER
EfBEME
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting

Guide Aspects and General

HERERRE

Disclosure
R - HERERRE Pages/Notes
EEBER—BRE Description it BE BT
Aspect A4: Climate Change
JEEAL - mIRE L
General Disclosure A4 Policies on identification and mitigation SRl K FES B AE N Al pe & BT T 46
— R of significant climate-related issues which ~ AE4FENEARIZREET
have impacted, and those which may HIBK o
impact, the issuer.
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- LD A8 R AT REET BT AEEAE RS 46
RAsiEUEE related issues which have impacted, and ~ ZHEXRIFIHBEE - LEY
those which may impact, the issuer, and 178 -
the actions taken to manage them.
B. Social
B.ALE
Employment and Labour Practices
BERZIER
Aspect B1: Employment
JEEBT - EF
General Disclosure B1 (a) The policies; and BT EE  BEEE 33-35
— MR TIERE - REA - TEHRE %

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare

it~ RIERAREMFENE
FAg

(@) B K

(by BFEHBETABEAFE
KM R AR KRB
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting

Guide Aspects and General

Disclosure
R - HERERRE Pages/Notes
EEBER—BRE Description it BE BT
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment  3Z14 Rl - (BB EEE (402 8%k 33-35
BSR4 EiE type (for example, full- or part-time), age 3 8%) - F4AR RHEZIHH

group and geographical region. EEEE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age BRI - FEAR R EE D H 33-35
AR sE R e E group and geographical region. BERKL R -
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
JEEB2 - LS
General Disclosure B2 (a) The policies; and BRRMELZ 2 TERE MREE 36
— MR B eBELEER

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant (@) BER: &
impact on the issuer
(b) BTFTHETABEATE

relating to providing a safe working KBRS A IR

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities BX=4%(BIEHREET)GEH 36
st iE g occurred in each of the past three years TERAEMML T A ABIN LR o

including the reporting year.
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury ATEELTIIERE 36
RAR B IEIE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and AT IR AN B E R L 25 36
AR EEE safety measures adopted, and how they W AN ABRAEhIT R ESER 0K o

are implemented and monitored.

50 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021



Environmental, Social and Governance Report &5 « &R EARRE

Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting

Guide Aspects and General

Disclosure
BiE s HERELRE Pages/Notes
EEBER—BRE Description it BE BT
Aspect B3: Development and Training
JEEB3 - #/EHIEF
General Disclosure B3  Policies on improving employees’ BRERTEERIT TIEBRENM 37-38
— R knowledge and skills for discharging R BERIBE o S IE

duties at work. Description of training g o

activities.
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by  ZIERI KRB E R (1S REIE 37-38
B E SRS gender and employee category (e.g. senior - HEERERE) SIS MEIIE

management, middle management). BEDL -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed RURREEERZD - §RE 37-38
AR EEE per employee by gender and employee B =23 E R o

category.
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EBEIB4 - TR
General Disclosure B4 (a) The policies; and BN IEE TakoaHil4s TH ¢ 39
—RAREE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and (@) BUER: &

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer (b) BITEHETABBEATE
HIAR AR ARG

relating to preventing child and forced

labour
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review TR ST HRERIE IR I B LA 39
AR A EE employment practices to avoid child and ~ ZET N &#HI4 T -

forced labour.
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate HAEEIRE R B R BB 39
AR A IEE such practices when discovered. 155 ST BB Y S8 o

2021 3 ERIRBEERERAR
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General
Disclosure

R - HERERRE Pages/Notes
EEBER—BRE Description it BE BT
Operating Management
EgEwE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
JEEBS : (REHREIE
General Disclosure B5 Policies on managing environmental and & I2 f#tjE §E IR B Rt & AR 39-40
— M social risks of the supply chain R
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical i@ & D AR ERR e E 39-40
SE SRS region.
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating e IR ERAIEDN - [ 39-40
BB aEEiE to engaging suppliers, number of HEHTABEENREREE

suppliers where the practices are LA AR T R BE B 5 0% o

being implemented, and how they are

implemented and monitored.
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify A BRI e S ER AN A 39-40
REsm A e environmental and social risks along IRIBRAERBEAES - AKRAE

the supply chain, and how they are PAITREEZR 0% o

implemented and monitored.
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote ¥ il fE #R 3% (it fE P B (R (6 % IR 39-40
RSB RIEIE environmentally preferable products REMBERIBHED] - LAKAERE

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting

Guide Aspects and General

HERERRE

Disclosure
R - HERERRE Pages/Notes
EEBER—BRE Description it BE BT
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
JEEB6 - Ean AT
General Disclosure B6 (a) The policies; and BREEHERMRG R REE 40-41
—MAREE Ze - EE  EEELEEEMU

(b) compliance with relevant laws and TR AR

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer (@ HE: R

relating to health and safety, advertising, (b) ETHETABEAFE

labeling and privacy matters relating KBRS A IR

to products and services provided and

methods of redress
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or EERDEXEMBEF I?% 40-41
AR A IIEE shipped subject to recalls for safety and B RRIE R mZER WA H 5

health reasons.
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related EEBREDMRIERFEE 40-41
RAsIEIUEE complaints received and how they are VAR FE$ 5 5% o

dealt with.
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to ot B4 T R R A E B R 40-41
RABLAEBUEIZ observing and protecting intellectual B -

property rights.
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process & ullE £ F B2 K E R B 40-41
SR SRS and recall procedures. o
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection i 3 J4 & & & £HR B & AL K 40-41
BASR IS BUR IR and privacy policies, and how they are % AREERITRERTE -

implemented and monitored.
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General
Disclosure

B HAREARS Pages/Notes
EEBER—BRE Description it BE BT
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
JEEB7 - KE)T
General Disclosure B7 (@) The policies; and ARG 1EBEEE ~ #hR - BRFE R L 42
—MAREE RiER

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant (@) BE: R
impact on the issuer
(b) BTFTHETAFERTE

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and EoElEE b YNGR

money laundering
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases RERAAEZITAREEESR 42
BSR4 EiE regarding corrupt practices brought I BB AR E SRR

against the issuer or its employees during B MEFAGER -

the reporting period and the outcomes of

the cases
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Py R B ERR - AR 42
AR IEEE whistle-blowing procedures, and how HENITRERGE -

they are implemented and monitored.
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training HilmESELRETRENRES 42
RABEAEBUEIZ provided to directors and staff. 23| o
Aspect BS: Community Investment
JEEIBS : IR E
General Disclosure B8  Policies on community engagement to BRI B2 ERERIEITAE 42-43
— R understand the needs of the communities EFTfEM R T EMERELERE

where the issuer operates and to ensure B &E Ext B RMBEE

its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. EIEHEBE(IHE  REE 42-43
RS EEE education, environmental concerns, T STESNk @F b - 2

labour needs, health, culture, sport). )
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or AEIHEMBEER(NESE 42-43
AR A IEE time) to the focus area s EERT)
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEE

Executive Director

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Z##) (“Mr. Huang”), aged 56, founder of the
Group, has been the Chairman and executive Director of our Group since
April 2011. He is also the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
with Mr. Jin Min jointly in charge of overall strategic planning and
operation management. Mr. Huang has served as the director of Risun,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, and all the subsidiaries of
the Company except for Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd., Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd., Qingdao Ruichi
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd. and Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd..Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang
was the director and chairman of Vast Surplus since November 2004 up
until now, mainly responsible for strategic planning and operation of Vast
Surplus. After Vast Surplus transferred its exclusive distribution rights to
service Taurolite, TAD and Esafosfina to Hong Kong Prosperous Group
Holding Limited in March 2015, it has no other business operations. Since
then, Mr. Huang has been devoting a majority of his time to the Group’s
business. In addition, Mr. Huang was also a founder, chief executive
officer and director of Chengdu Ruixin Biopharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd (“Ruixin”) from February 2004 to April 2011. The principal
business of Ruixin was consultation in pharmaceutical products, providing
marketing and promotion services as well as assisting in obtaining
regulatory approvals and registrations for pharmaceutical products.
However, the pharmaceutical products serviced by Ruixin were mainly
traditional Chinese medicine extracts, which are different from those
of the pharmaceutical products serviced by the Group. Ruixin was not
engaged in any business which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business. Furthermore, Ruixin was
jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui
(an independent third party who is not considered a connected person
or associate of a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was never a member of the Group
which was readily disposable for corporate reorganization solely based
on Mr. Huang's decision. As the management of Ruixin began to focus
on the business development of the Group since Mr. Huang incorporated
Sichuan Pharmaceuticals in 2011, Ruixin did not have any business or
operations, which subsequently led to the passing of the shareholders’
resolutions on 22 September 2015 to voluntarily dissolve Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan (&7t
T % s ER FT) from July 1988 to July 2004 as a pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety
information.
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Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (b R BB R EEITEFBER AR Q)
("Beijing Guangtong”), a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation
of its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40%
and 10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao, respectively.
Both Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr.
Huang confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business
license of Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation
of Beijing Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s
business. To be best of Mr. Huang's knowledge, Beijing Guantong had
ceased attending annul inspection (%) as it had no business operation,
resulting in its business license being revoked subsequently on 26
November 2004. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act on
his part leading to the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or
potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of
the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (F/8238KE) in December 2008 and obtained a certificate
of completion from the MBA programme of Renmin University of China
(FFEIARAKE) in August 2002. He also obtained a bachelor’s degree in
botanical resources (B AE Y& JR) from lilin Agriculture University (Z5#k
B ZEKE) in July 1988. Mr. Huang has been studying in the Univsite Paris
— Dauphine under the Executive Doctorate in Business Administration
(EDBA) program since December 2013.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (2|Z£75) ("Mr. Lau”), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 8 November 2018.
Mr. Lau is currently the finance and investor relations director, company
secretary of Dalipal Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1921). He is also an
independent non-executive director of Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 528), United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2337)
and Kongli International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6890). Mr. Lau
was an independent non-executive director of China Wood Optimization
(Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 1885) from December 2013 to February
2022, and from May 2012 to October 2020, he served as an independent
non-executive director of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited, which
was delisted on the main board of the Stock Exchange on 5 July 2021.
Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in finance and
accounting in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. Wang Qing (GE#5) (“Mr. Wang"”), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. Mr. Wang worked at Dalian University of Technology (K3
78 T K E2) from April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang served as an associate
professor when he first joined Dalian University of Technology and was
later promoted to professor in November 2010, responsible for research
and development and teaching. Mr. Wang is currently the director of
the Department of Pharmacy in the School of Pharmaceutical Sciences at
Dalian University of Technology. From July 1986 to September 1997, Mr.
Wang worked as a pharmacist supervisor at Liaoning Provincial Medical
Company Limited (E2E4 &4 R FEAF), where he was responsible
for drugs inspection and evaluation and participated in research and
technical renovation.

Mr. Wang obtained his Ph.D. in therapy system from Kyushu Institute of
Technology (UM S T KE2) in Japan in March 2003 and a master’s
degree in therapy system from Kyushu Institute of Technology in March
2000. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in medicinal plants from
Jilin Agricultural University (Z5 #5222 K£2) in July 1986.
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Mr. Liu Wenfang (2/325) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 84, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2017 to present, he serves
as a senior technical consultant in Shanxi Kangbao Biological Product
Co., Ltd (L7 E MR MARH FRAF)). From July 2017 to September
2020, Mr. Liu Wenfang served as a senior technical consultant at China
Biologic Products Inc. (RHEYRBER AT, a company listed on
NASDAQ (stock code: CBPO). From February 2011 to July 2017, he serves
as an independent director of China Biologic Products Inc. From 2007 to
2011, Mr. Liu worked as a chief consultant at Sichuan Yuanda Shuyang
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (I0)I:R KR &G EEEMRH B R A E]) where he
was responsible for research and promoting new theories and applications
in the medical field. From 2000 to 2007, he served as the chief engineer
and director of Hualan Biological Engineering Inc. GEBAM TN H
B2 /2 7)) where he was responsible for supervising manufacturing process
and quality management. From May 1998 to May 1999, Mr. Liu served
as the chief engineer of Guiyang Qianfeng Biological Products Co., Ltd.
(BEEBIE LB HAR A (E2 ) where he was responsible for research
and developing new products. From 1978 to 1988, Mr. Liu worked in
the Institute of Blood Transfusion, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences
(R B2 2R Epr #g I AT 3T FT) and was engaged in the segregation and
purification of blood and protein and research, development and quality
analysis of blood products.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in biochemistry from the Shenyang
Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of Sciences (7 B %} E2p57 &
F5 F& FA A BEAft 3T FT) (formerly known as the Institute of Forestry and Soil
Sciences) in August 1963.

Mr. Bai Zhizhong (B&®) (“Mr. Bai”), aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 September 2020,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board. Mr. Bai has over 30 years of experience in the finance industry.
Mr. Bai served as the chairman of Bank of China Investment Management
Company Limited from January 2015 to June 2017. He worked with the
Bank of China from July 1995 to January 2015, where he had previously
served as the president of the Guangdong province branch, the Sichuan
province branch, the Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region branch and the
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region branch of Bank of China, and he
served as the head of comprehensive planning division of Bank of China,
Shanxi Province branch.

Mr. Bai obtained a master degree in business administration from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University, the PRC in 2007, and he was qualified
as a senior economist of Bank of China Assessment Committee of
Qualifications in Economic Professional Positions (H B £ 17 4% 775 25 3 5= 47
B ERTEEZES®)in December 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management EE N SR EEE

Senior Management

Mr. Jin Min (£8) (“Mr. Jin"), aged 44, jointed our Group in February
2014 as the vice president of the Marketing department of Sichuan
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.and was appointed as a co-chief
executive officer of the Company in November 2020, with Mr. Huang
Xiangbin jointly in charge of the Group’s overall business development,
operation and management. Mr. Jin has over 19 years of experience in
the pharmaceutical industry. Before joining the Group, Mr. Jin worked
with Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (BJNE BN AR A R)
from August 2001 to January 2014, and last served as the director of
the marketing department, responsible for product promotion and
management. Mr. Jin obtained a bachelor’s degree in management in
June 2001 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in science in June 2000, both
from Sun Yat-sen University, the PRC.

Mr. Li Yifan (Z2—) (“Mr. Li"), aged 42, joined our Group in February
2015 and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
June 2015, mainly responsible for the overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and financing management of
the Group. Mr. Li is also the director of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. Before joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for
China Polymetallic Mining Limited, a company listed on the HKSE (stock
code: 2133) from March 2011 to January 2015, and last served as the
deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial accounting and
management. From February 2005 to February 2011, Mr. Li successively
served as an auditor of the Shenzhen Branch and a senior auditor of
the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP. Mr. Li obtained
a Master of Science in Finance degree from the University of Stirling in
January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University of Finance
and Economics (FARg A48 A22) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s degree in
management. Mr. Li has been a Chinese certified public accountant since
January 2012.
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Mr. Zhang Tao (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 38, joined our Group in November
2013 and was appointed as the general manager of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. in November 2020, mainly responsible for
its overall operation and management. Mr. Zhang was successively the
director of president office and deputy general manager of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhang is also the director of Chengdu Sinco
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd., Sichuan Biological Technology Co.,
Ltd. and Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology Co.,
Ltd.. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked for Chengdu Huide
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (A #EFZEE LRI AR A A from July 2010 to
July 2012 as the project manager of the R&D department and product
registration manager successively. Mr. Zhang obtained a Master of Science
in Clinical Pharmacology from University of Glasgow in December 2013
and graduated from Chengdu University of TCM (fk & A2 B8 25 K £2) in July
2007 with a bachelor’s degree in pharmaceutical preparation. Mr. Zhang
has been a licensed pharmacist since December 2010.

60

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021

REBAE(TREED @ 385% * H2013F 11 AMAR
£8 - R2020F 1 AEZT AN | BRIAHEESRE
FREIREIE  FEAEHBREKEEETETE-
SRR B TP || BRLA S B R BT QA S&T
BAHNANEETERTHELRLE o RIEEITDBKE
FRIEBEESMARETART - )| EREA YRR
BRARI MK ER I EERNERETARINE
FE o REAFEIOFEREITENELR - MAREE
AT+ SRIEAEIE2010F7 AE 201247 A HARITEACHD
DEEENBARAREBEHMEIER LB RER
FEMACIE o SRR 2013 12 A BB HT T K2
PREEIBEE B2 (T - JA20074F7 AR EMNKE P L&k
REWESSEYRIBBET 20 - 72010F 12 AERFH
BB -



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Board hereby presents its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in China. The analysis of the revenue of the
principal activities of the Group during the Reporting Period is set out in
the note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period is
provided in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 27.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights
on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 98 of this annual report.

Final Dividends
The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the Reporting Period.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
10 May 2022 to Friday, 13 May 2022, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend
the forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, 13 May 2022. To be eligible
for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer documents, as well as
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 6 May 2022.

Financial Summary

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Reporting Period, the Group's products purchased from the largest
supplier accounted for 96.8% (2020: 96.6%) of total products purchased,
and products purchased from five largest suppliers accounted for 100%
(2020: 100%) of our total products purchased.

For the Reporting Period, the Group's sales to largest customer accounted
for 28.0% (2020: 33.1%) of our total revenue, and sales to the five
largest customers accounted for 38.9% (2020: 56.8%) of our total
revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group'’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2021
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out on page 101 in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association,
amounted to approximately RMB77.4 million (as at 31 December 2020:
RMB8.6 million).

Bank and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors EE &2

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders, the Company had
adopted the Share Option Scheme which became effective on 10 March

2016 (the “Listing Date").

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive
or reward for Eligible Participants (defined below) for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.

Eligible participants

The Board may subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, at its discretion
grant options to any full-time or part-time employees, including
executives, senior management or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest, and to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants who, in the
absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to
the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from 1 February 2016, after which time no further option
will be granted.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 160,000,000, representing 7.87% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total shares in issue.
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10.

64

Offer period and amount payable for options

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 15
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant
of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall be one year after the date on which the option is granted. The
Board may in its absolute discretion impose further restrictions on
the exercise of the option.

Period within which the Share must be taken up
Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions
on the exercise of the option, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the options is granted and shall expire on
the earlier of the last day of (i) a six year period from the date of
such grant and (ii) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of:

(i)  The closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted;

(i) The average closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of that option; and

(iii)  The nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10

years commencing on 10 March 2016. The remaining life of the
Share Option Scheme is 3 years and 11 months.
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BRI T 2R MR 202141 A1 8 K2021412
A31BMARITERERER T

The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that
were still outstanding as at 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 are as

follows:
Number of Options
e ]
On On
1 January 31 December
2021 2021 Exercise
Grantee's name R2021E Granted Exercised Cancelled  Forfeited® R2021% Price™ Date of grant Exercise period?
ERALES 1818 g i B bL G 12A31H TEE0 BHAH T
Employees in aggregate 15,650,000 0 12,000,000 0 2,500,000 1,150,000 HK$0.568 21 September 2016 21 September 2017-
EEAH 056877 2016%9A21H 20 September 2022
017972182
2020597208
Notes: et -
(1) The exercise price represents not less than the highest of (i) the closing price (1) fTEETNERAT=ZEmBHZSE - ()A201659 A

of HK$0.540 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets on 21
September 2016, being the date of such grant; (ii) the average closing price
of HK$0.568 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets for
five business days immediately preceding the date of such grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share at HK$0.0001 per Share.

21 B (BNE R L A ) EE BT B WK FTE R
MESR0.540/ 7T : (VRMHNEZERERLBSNA
EEERETBHIMABREABNFHIRTESR
0.568 87T ¢ (iR EEEFAX0.0001 T °

(2)  40% of the options granted shall be vested and can be exercised upon one  (2) &K EEREN40% 1% 5B BEE E B B —F (A
year commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2017) and a 2017F9A210) EREZE—FEATHBERITE -
continuous employment of one year. Another 30% of the options granted, BRI S5M30% 1% B B B L B B M4 (B
shall be vested and can be exercised upon two years commencing the date 201859218 BB EMFEA THE RITHE
of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2018) and a continuous employment of two BEBRIENSRT30% 158 8RR L A B =4 (8
years. The remaining 30% of the options granted, shall be vested and can 2019921 A ERFERE=FE THBRITHE
be exercised upon three years commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21
September 2019) and a continuous employment of three years.

(3) 2,500,000 share options granted to several employees were forfeited two ~ (3) & F%& T1&E&#)2,500,00017 FEARER 1 F 4 EHE

months after their cessation of employment.

B2 R{E AR I
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Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Directors
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Zhijie (resigned on 8 January 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Bai Zhizhong

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang
Xiangbin and Mr. Wang Qing will retire and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular to the Shareholders.
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Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 51 to 56 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of Appointments
The executive Director has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of service
agreement, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of the letter of appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either part to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or
had any interest in any business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Reporting
Period.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial party of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had an aggregate of 120 full-
time employees. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors

Up to date of this report, there were no changes to information which are
required to be disclosed and had been disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
were granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the
Reporting Period.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including any interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under provisions of the SFO), or (i) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interest in Shares or Underlying Shares of the Company

EEREBETHRAERKRSG - HEBERHO R
EEPNERERXR

R2021%F12A31H » EERARGEEZTHAER
RARSKEAAAEEB(ERRFSRAEKLIE
XVE) I I (D - AR RESF - B )REE S
N EAE DI EXVERE T M8 BB MA RN R BB
ZET R ROX B (BIEIRIEH F RS &N B B %
X BEWEERERAEENTMNERRAR)
(R IEE FH K E & HI E 35216 BRR R AR RITF
EMECMANERE AR - IR LR B &
TAE EMBETAESETIELR LS RITESTAIZAN
EARNRREBHAERABAT

(i) MARERDNAEERD S

Number of Approximate
Shares or percentage of
Name of Director and underlying shareholding
chief executive Nature of Interest Shares® interest®
EERTIEABAEHE EEME BRAREERGBEO BRESNE DL
Mr. Huang® Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000(L) 56.06%
=RAEQ REEE R
Jin Min Beneficial owner 13,680,000(L) 0.73%
28 BERBEEA
Notes: Wit

(1) The Letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang is the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited is the trustee and holds the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,872,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2021.

(1) FERILIEZBALREOFISENITER

Q EEEAR " BEERENUEETA HAF
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited &% {2 £
K= £ AP35 B Fullwealth Holdings Limited 2 &8
#E25 - MFullwealth Holdings Limited#ARisun®
HERER - BLERR AR AR UNE R TR
1,050,000,000% A% {7 ) i 71

() HESLPHREN2021F12A31ABH
1,872,890,585 B BT TIR(H At HSH -
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model
Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following person/entities (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

(i) Interestin the Company

Br EXCATIREEE SN - 20215124310 » ARAE
ERTBITRABMERANR B HEBBEEEE
FERBEHFLHEEXVEDHERD - HERDHEST
A SR R A RN A R BIRIEE 5 M A E 5
FIEISIGEHRERFENELMANERIOAR © &
RBZETRASITHERNR A RE B R ER
REIOAR

FERFRAROREBROPNERR
RE

MR2021F12 8318 » REBMEAA - RIBAQAIE
REHFRPEKFIEIBKAETEENTDMALTT
8 UTAL / BEE(EEXAQAAETBITHRAER
M) IR SR RARR (0 R A IR IR B R B R I&BIE
XVED K 552 &35 BP A IGSCZB M AN A B 5 B8 e i s sl

B

(i) RARTHER

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name Nature of Interest Shares® interest®
Z8 EEME BREA® REBNT DL
Risun@ Beneficial owner 1,050,000,000 (L) 56.06%
Risun@ EnEAA
Fullwealth Holdings Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 (L) 56.06%
Fullwealth Holdings Limited REEEER S
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited®@ Trustee 1,050,000,000 (L) 56.06%
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited® ZHEA

Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang is the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited is the trustee and holds the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Fullwealth Holdings Limited, Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited and Mr. Huang are deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,872,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2021.
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Report of the Directors EEE# &

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the guarantee provided by Mr. Huang
as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements is a
connected transaction exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complies with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transaction.

Material Transaction During the Reporting Period
On 9 September 2021, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary
entered into a master cooperation agreement and technological
development agreements with Beijing Nuokangda Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. in relation to the development of polycaprolactone
microsphere facial filler and its materials for injection at an aggregate
consideration of RMB88,500,000. Through the said transactions, the
Group intends to develop its medical aesthetic industry chain and
gradually establish the dual business segments of pharmaceutical
products and medical aesthetic products as its business development
direction, leveraging the Group's expertise and experience in the provision
of imported pharmaceutical products. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 9 September 2021 and 21
October 2021.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Cayman Companies Law where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

BE - LEREE LHES
RIER - AAAREEAMED
BRI AR AEM LTS -

AIBERE -

BERXS

REEETHEB AR ZFE %zb‘A RE B RE N
29 o RIE LR AIE14A.901% - IR A IS RRM R
26FT I BEME AL REMNERAEHREE T FTTRA
F14A0EMAE « BTR - FEFZ LB FEIHE
BENBERS - ARRIEH LMEERSET N
REIE1AAERNBTRATE ©
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Non-Competition Undertaking

On 1 February 2016, Mr. Huang and Risun, the Group's controlling
shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company (for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant
to which they have undertaken, subject to and excepts as mentioned in
the Prospectus, that they, would not, and would procure that none of
their associates (other than any member of our Group) will directly or
indirectly, engage in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with our Group’s business as described in the
Prospectus in the PRC or any other places in which our Group carries on
business.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling shareholders
confirming their compliance with the deed of non-competition during the
Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for its Directors.

Charitable Donations
During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations of nil
(2020: Nil).

Disclosure Under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibilities of disclosure under rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advance by the Company to an entity.

Disclosure under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules
The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibilities of disclosure under rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
with the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practice adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 74 to 95 of this annual report.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times as of the date of this report.

Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and internal
control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit.

The annual results for the Reporting Period of the Company have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditor

Ernst & Young was appointed as auditor of the Company (“Auditor”)
since 20 July 2020 and is the Auditor for the Reporting Period. Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited (“Crowe") was the Auditor before Ernst & Young and its
resignation took into account various factors, including the professional
risk associated with the audit, the level of audit fees and the availability of
its internal resources in light of its current work flows. After considering
the facts and circumstances, the Audit Committee, having been delegated
to power to oversee the effectiveness of the external auditor, was of
the view that it would be in the best interest of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole to replace Crowe with Ernst & Young. The
Company had received a letter from Crowe confirming that there are no
matters in connection with its resignation that needs to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders or the creditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Sichuan, the PRC, 30 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions under the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” of this report. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are outlined later in this
report. The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and the Internal Control And Corporate
Governance Committee (the “ICCG Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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Board Composition
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises one executive
Director and four independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Bai Zhizhong

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has been in compliance with
the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of, among
other things, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the
approach towards achieving diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy, all Board appointments will be based on merits, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board.
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As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the ICCG Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments
and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Dividend Policy
The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 21
December 2018. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to consider the payment of dividends, to allow

shareholders of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits
whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future growth.
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The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

—  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

- other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to certain restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association.
The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time
and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company'’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2021 is as follows:

RIBFZZMREMNER - EERNEE2021F12A31
AItFEAESHEIBMS0T

Nature of Continuous
Professional
Development Programmes

Name of Director BB FESERRTINME
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. Huang Xiangbin |mEW R E A C&D
Ms. Zhang Zhijie (resigned on 8 January 2021) RSB (R20214F1 ASHEBHT) A&D
Independent Non-executive Directors BT TEE

Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG - A, C&D
Mr. Wang Qing SERE S A, B C&D
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35k A, C&D
Mr. Bai Zhizhong BHEPRLEE A C&D

Notes: Wizt :

A.  Attending seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefings
B. Giving talks in the seminars and/or meetings and/or forums
C.  Attending training relevant to the Company'’s business conducted by lawyers

D.  Reading materials relevant to corporate governance, director’s functions and
duties, the Listing Rules and other relevant ordinances

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Under the organization structure of the Company, Mr. Huang was the
Chairman of the Board. Further, Mr. Huang and Mr. Jin Min jointly
serve as the co-chief executive officers of the Company, sharing the
responsibility of the Group’s overall business development, operation,
and management work. With Mr. Huang's extensive experience in the
pharmaceutical industry, the Board considered that vesting the roles of
chairman and co-chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial
to the business prospects and management of the Group. The check and
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprises experienced and high
calibre individuals. Accordingly, the Board believes that this arrangement
will not impact on the balance of power and authorizations between the
Board and the management of the Company.

78

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021

A HEBERREER S RHER GRS
B. MEBER/HEHERNHELRE
C.  H/FeERRDER R AN R KA RE

D. BEAMAREA EFMERME - LTEARE
feAERB I bR

ERRITHAR
RIBOEEATANEXEC 216 - ERERITBAHN
AEET AR S R TR AT IEE -

REBEARBNEBRE  ELLEREFTSLIR - It
S EmEA RS HEE KREERRRBEFEITHAE
B HAAEAKEBEEBERR ZLEREET
e BRBEALENBETENEELR EFTRR
A — AFREZE LB ETRARBL - BRRAS
BWEBAISLEE - ERAEALREEHT HHOA
THRNEREEEEEESEET - AJHRENE
R ZEEMHE - At EFFRE - R
FEEEQHEANRERE 2 FHE S EERE RS
-



Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERRE

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years commencing from their
respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at
the next general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers will
be dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, eight Board meetings and one general RH{HEAR @ HEFTARXKESTEZ L —ABREKX
meeting were held and the attendance record of each Director is set out & » &% $E’J}:|jf£ﬁ§k§UlZDT
below:
Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to attend Eligible to attend
the Board meeting(s) the general meeting(s)
BHEAHE BHE/AHE
Directors E= EZeeRNE RERERE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin %ﬁﬁ%‘ﬁi 8/8 11
Ms. Zhang Zhijie (resigned on 8 January 2021) BT (1202151 A8HEHT) 1/8 0/1
Mr. Lau Ying Kit %HM%%E. 8/8 n
Mr. Wang Qing padi-pivtes 8/3 11
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 RE 8/8 11
Mr. Bai Zhizhong BEFREE 8/8 11
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
dealings in the Company'’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the
Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to
seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function and ICCG Committee

The ICCG Committee currently comprises four members, namely Mr.
Lau Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Bai
Zhizhong, all of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of the Directors and delegated the corporate governance
duties to the ICCG Committee which includes, without limitation:

(a

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Report”); and

to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an on-going basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the ICCG Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, one ICCG Committee meeting was held and
the attendance records are set out below:

RRERA - BT RABERREEEREZES
i HECHESEIMT

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors E=x RE, BERE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit RRGEEE ”n
Mr. Wang Qing TRk AE 11
Mr. Liu Wenfang g 11
Mr. Bai Zhizhong BHEREE 1”1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Lau Ying Kit
(chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Bai Zhizhong, all of
them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the
following:

(@) to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Auditor;

(b) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;
and

(c) toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance records of the Audit Committee meeting are set out
below:

Fg

RIEHA - KBITMABERZESSH  EKEE
@@%E’Jﬂj}*.ﬂﬁ‘%ﬁuﬁﬂ?’

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors E=x RE/ EERE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG - 2/2
Mr. Wang Qing pasli=ptast 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B3k 212
Mr. Bai Zhizhong BHEPREE 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Wang Qing (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Bai Zhizhong, all of
them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not
limited to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2.  toreview and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board;

3. to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;
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5.  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, two Remuneration Committee meetings
were held and the attendance records are set out below:
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EMEME - ARAEEEM T EAIRBGE
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Attendance/

Number of meeting

Directors = HERY, BERE
Mr. Wang Qing RS A 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 2/2
Mr. Bai Zhizhong (appointed on 8 January 2021) El RS (R20214F1 ASHEZR(T) 2/2
Ms. Zhang Zhijie (resigned on 8 January 2021) REAEZ L (R20216F 1 A8AEHT) 0/2
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Lau Ying Kit.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer; and

5. toreview the Board diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, two Nomination Committee meetings were ~ RiREHIR - BEITMAREZEES€ e - LELE
held and the attendance records are set out below: HyT

Attendance/
Number of meeting
Directors B=x HERE GBRE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin EEW R E 2/2
Mr. Lau Ying Kit RRGEEE 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang BN EE 2/2
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Nomination Policy
1. Objective

1.1

1.3

2.1

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Director at general meetings or
appoint him/her to fill causal vacancies.

The nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) helps the Nomination Committee and the Board to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Group’s business.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

(1) Reputation for integrity;

(2) Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

(3) Diversity of the Board in all its aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age (above 18), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and are not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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3.

88

Nomination Procedures
Appointment of Directors

3.1

3.2

3.3

(M

The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members, having due
regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy, and assesses the independence of the proposed
independent non-executive Director(s) as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by
the Nomination Committee, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s)
as Director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by
the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board will be subject to re-election by Shareholders
at the next general meeting, in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

The Shareholders approve the election of individual(s), who
stand(s) for election at a general meeting, as Director(s).

Re-appointment of Directors

(M

The Nomination Committee considers each retiring
Director, having due regard to the Nomination Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy, and assesses the independence
of each retiring independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers each retiring Director recommended
by the Nomination Committee, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board recommends the retiring Directors to stand for
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

The Shareholders approve the re-election of Directors at
the annual general meeting.

The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility for all matters

relating to the selection and appointment of Directors.
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4. Review of the Nomination Policy
4.1 The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 153 to
155 of this annual report, for the Reporting Period are set out below:

4. BIIEHEE

41 REZBefSRTRABER(RERBRMN
E) - URERIBERBERTZBER - REBEE
G EM A AL IERT - B[
EESRNETNEBES  UHESS
R
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BEERHMFBERNAFRES M BHRMES - 2R
EEE(RENBEEHNAFRFEIS3EISSE)NHE
HAIR R F BN S T

Number of individual

Remuneration band (RMB) FEE(ARY) AH
Below 1,000,000 1,000,000 T 4

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 92 to 97 of this Annual Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholder investments and Company assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.
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The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control system to be effective and
adequate.

Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Group's risk management framework is structured in the following
"Three Lines of Defense” model as a guide:
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Board of Directors
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i)

ICCG Committee
WEMESIREEEREZER

Audit Committee
BERELZEY

{3 i)

{3

2nd Line of Defence:
Risk Management and Internal Control Team
F_EME - RREIE R AP EE I E K

3rd Line of Defence:
Internal Audit Department
F=EMLR - NEBEIZER

iy

1st Line of Defence:
All Business Departments
FE—BIR - BB

The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the ICCG Committee and the Audit
Committee. Such review encompasses all major control aspects, including
finance, operation and compliance. Such risk management and internal
control systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board has completed its annual review of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021, with all the above major control aspects covered. The Board has
considered the operation of risk management and internal control systems
to be generally adequate and effective, with no significant areas brought
to its attention during the year.

The ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee assist the Board to fulfill
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control, ensuring
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
courses and related budgets for the Group in executing its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The committees also
consider the important investigation results concerning the matters of risk
management and internal control, report to and raise suggestions to the
Board.

1st Line of Defense

By preparing a risk list with risk control responsibility allocated to
departments, the Group is able to deliver risk management across all
the business departments. These departments continuously review and
assess the risks that may have a potential impact on corporate operation,
and effectively execute the process control for business according to the
respective functions and departmental regulations, all in a bid to raise the
efficiency in risk management.

2nd Line of Defense

Composed of nominated department managers and senior management,
the Risk Management and Internal Control Team (the “Team”) organizes
business departments to identify, assess and manage the risks that
may have a potential impact on corporate operation, and ensures the
implementation of proper measures and internal control regulations to
address major risks. In the meantime, the Team monitors risks and takes
measures to reduce the risks in daily operation, provides timely response
to and follow up of the investigation results of internal control from
the Internal Audit Department (the “Internal Audit Department”), and
confirms to the Board as to the effectiveness of such risk management
and internal control systems.

3rd Line of Defense
The Internal Audit Department executes the actual review procedure, to
collect the evidence on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, and report the review results
to the ICCG Committee.

In addition, the Internal Audit Department raises suggestions to the Board
and the management, to address major institutional inadequacies or any
control loopholes spotted.
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Procedures for Identifying, Assessing and Managing

Major Risks

—  Determining the scope: preparing uniform risk terms and risk
assessment standards for the Group

- Risk identification: identifying the risks that may have a potential
impact on corporate operation

—  Risk assessment: considering risks in respect of the degree of
importance of their impact on business and their occurrence, and
assessing the risks identified

—  Risk management: establishing risk management policies and
internal control procedures, to avert or reduce risks

- Risk monitoring and reporting: continuously monitoring relevant risks,
ensuring proper procedures of internal control, and regularly reporting
to the management and the Board on the results of risk monitoring

Function of Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company. The Internal Audit Department’s main
responsibilities are to review the financial conditions and internal control of the
Company and all its subsidiaries, communicate with department managers
and senior management on the identified problems, non-compliance issues
and inadequacies, and jointly prepare rectification and improvement solutions.
The Internal Audit Department also follows such rectification results, and
reports to the ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee.

Information Disclosure System

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system, to ensure the
identification and confidentiality of potential inside information until it is
disclosed according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.
The procedures for publishing and processing inside information include:

o Business department managers as the people in charge of
information reporting;

e  Senior management as the people in charge of the information
confidentiality of their respective business segments;

e The Board as the party in charge of information disclosure; and

e  The Investor Relations Department and the Board Secretary as
the parties responsible for managing information disclosure, the
reporting, audit and disclosure of information which needs public
announcement, and archiving and keeping such information
disclosure documents and announcements.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB2,850 thousand. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in
respect of non-audit services.

Joint Company Secretary

Ms. Peng Yunlu (“Ms. Peng”), one of our joint company secretaries of the
Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, as well as
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company has
also appointed Mr. Li Kin Wai (“Mr. Li"”), a manager of Tricor Services
Limited, as another joint company secretary to assist Ms. Peng to
discharge her duties as company secretary of the Company. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Li, one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Peng and Mr. Li have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE in a timely manner after each
general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC. (Email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com).
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Change in Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association have
been adopted on 1 February 2016 and with effect from the Listing Date.
And there were no significant changes in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

On 30 March 2022, the Board proposes to amend the existing
Memorandum and Articles of Association (the “Existing M&A") for,
among other things, (i) bringing the Existing M&A up to date and in
line with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the applicable
amendments made to the Listing Rules and (ii) supplementing procedures
required for confirming the voting methods used in general meetings.
The Board proposes to seek the approval of the Shareholders by way
of special resolution at the AGM to adopt the second amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association (the “New M&A"), in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the Existing M&A. The proposed
adoption of the New M&A is subject to the approval of the Shareholders
by way of special resolution at the AGM. Prior to the passing of the
special resolution at the AGM, the Existing M&A shall remain valid.

A circular containing, inter alia, details of the proposed amendments to
the Existing M&A and the adoption of the New M&A, together with the
notice of the AGM and the related proxy form, will be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R ElE S

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZ=2021F12A31BILFE

Ernst & Young

979 King’s Road

EY =x

To the shareholders of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 102 to 205, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Key audit matters (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
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procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for

our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BRESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEREBRRENSE

Revenue recognition

RN 7 B BT

The Group recognises revenue when the amount can be
reliably estimated, when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and the control of the goods
is transferred to the buyer. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group recognised revenue of RMB2,024 million.
Some terms of sales arrangements with customers including the
timing of transfer of control of goods, delivery specifications,
generate complexity and judgement in determining sales
revenues and revenue cut-off. The risk is, therefore, that
revenue is not recognised in the correct period or that revenue
and the associated profit is misstated.

The Group's disclosures about revenue is included in notes 2.4,
3 and 4 to the financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included:

e understanding the revenue recognition policy and
performing tests of controls on revenue recognition;

e reviewing sales contracts and supplementary agreements
to check the relevant key terms of revenue recognition;

e performing analytical procedures by comparing the unit
selling price, the sales volumes and gross margin to that
in prior years by products and by month;

° obtaining confirmation from key customers and reviewing
the reconciliation of any material difference by checking
to related documents;

e performing the cut-off test for revenue recognised
before and subsequent to the end of reporting period
so as to check whether revenue is accounted for in the
appropriate period; and

° assessing the disclosures regarding the revenue
recognition.

BIHEFEEE
o BEARUESTERBUR Myt et
o EHHEEAORMITHZ

3

RIITIEBIRA -
VAR 35 s o R O A R A i
o BBREMEE HENMEMNERREMRZAMNEBAE
FELE - WTOMEF

o HSEREFP®ER  WHEERESMEXMHENEENE
REREMYR -

o HNWMEHMRARERNKREHITEEINR - UEER
HEBANEEMEARK &

o HEARWESHERMIERR o

97

2021 73 EMAEZERARAT



Independent Auditor’s Report Y& AZEHH¥R &=
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Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

1 00 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report Y& AZEHH¥R &=
For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZ=2021F 12 A31BILFE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matter communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

ek HEMEEWRER

Year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021412A31HIEFE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARET T ARBFT
REVENUE & 4 2,024,055 2,049,803
Cost of sales $HE RN (1,659,105) (1,775,977)
Gross profit EF 364,950 273,826
Other income and gains HA Mg A Rz 5 10,951 13,669
Selling and distribution expenses HE MEHEAY (105,375) (89,836)
Administrative expenses TR (66,001) (40,552)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss 2 2 W IE R E R 1B
on trade receivables Bm (B 7 (1,020) 350
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on 5T ATET I8 « HAith EUFIE
financial assets included in prepayments, MHEMEENRIEERE
other receivables and other assets EiaaEm () 7 164 (48)
Other expenses Hx (7,118) (12,657)
Finance costs IR IDIN 6 (29,164) (8,797)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BT AR T 167,387 135,955
Income tax expense Frisfifsz (32,304) (17,818)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FREMNRZEKE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR wzE 135,083 118,137
Attributable to: BTN AL FE4h
Owners of the parent ISYNSIETZPN 135,083 118,137
Non-controlling interests VR TR - -
135,083 118,137
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary & AREBEERZEA
equity holders of the parent: EiESRER
Basic BN
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FRHEM(ARE) 10 0.078 0.070
Diluted e
— For profit for the year (RMB) —FRHEMNARE) 10 0.078 0.070
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR®T T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R N G&E 11 207,867 188,249
Investment property KEME 12 6,499 6,679
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13(a) 48,394 49,934
Intangible assets mE A E 14 - 22
Payments in advance TR FIE 169 796
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E 15 860 646
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 263,789 246,326
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 78 16 61,270 242,561
Trade and bills receivables B rEWIE R EREE 17 213,601 578,687
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE « Eofth EURIE K
other assets HEithEE 18 313,039 40,714
Pledged deposits [REEEGIVER N 19 55,015 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEY 19 326,052 143,765
Total current assets RBEELE 968,977 1,005,727
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B S ENFIE 20 422,933 700,320
Contract liabilities AHatE 21 27,749 27,806
Other payables and accruals ,H\/rfﬂ}ﬂ‘f KO8 N fEETFOE 22 53,424 161,946
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STESRTTREMER 23 208,320 77,986
Tax payable FE R IR 12,826 21,999
Lease liabilities HEAE 13(b) 384 736
Total current liabilities REREAE 725,636 990,793
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 243,341 14,934
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ #& &R B2 & 507,130 261,260

2021 £ mimsmpparas 103



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #R& B i&HAR 0=

31 December 2021 2021412 H31H

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mozt AR®T T AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans SHERITER 23 132,244 3,042
Other payables and accruals H A e K08 K FERT FUE 22 - 93,422
Lease liabilities HEAE 13(b) = 367
Total non-current liabilities FREBAERRE 132,244 96,831
Net assets EEZFE 374,886 164,429
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners of FRAREE AEEER
the parent
Issued capital 2ETRA 26 151 136
Reserves e 26 374,735 165,201
374,886 165,337
Non-controlling interests FEER S - (908)
Total equity RERETE 374,886 164,429
Huang Xiangbin Liu Wenfang
W LS
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

1:'"') \,é.":u%EjJ %:Z

n\/-_l_\
Year ended 31 December 2021 EZE2021412A31HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
SN LPN
Changes in
Share Share non- Non-
Issued  premium Contributed ~Statutory  option controlling Accumulated controlling Total
capital  account  surplus  reserve  reserve interests losses Total interests  equity
BEf it BRE  FER R
BE  EER EBEES iERE e BE%® ZiEE &3t BE EREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBFT ARETH ARETT ARETH ARETT ARETH ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(note 24) (note 26(3)) (note 26(b)  (note 26(c))  (note 26(d)
(Fzta) (Witoge) (Weoew) (hizeo) (Weve)
At 1 January 2020 H2000£1R1A 36 289113 4250 16715 2906 4014 Q70588 46546 (08 45638
Correction of prior year errors FEI-EEER - - - - - - 654 654 - 654
At 1 January 2020 (restated) M2020E1B1B(EEF)) 136 289,113 4250 16,715 2,906 4014 (269.934) 47,200 (908) 46,29
Profit and total comprehensive EREHREENGER

income for the year - - - - - - 118137 118,137 - 118137
Transfer to statutory reserve BREATERE - - - 383 - - (3.839) - - -
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A318 136 289,113* 4250 20,554* 2,906* 4014%  (155,636)¢ 165,337 (908) 164,429
At 1 January 2021 R2021%1818 136 289,113 4,250 20,554 2,906 4,014 (155636) 165,337 (908) 164,429
Profit and total comprehensive ERENRZ BN

income for the year i - - - - - - 135083 135,083 - 135083
Issue of new shares BITHR 14 70,161 - - - - - 0175 - 10175
Share issue expenses e - (369) - - - - - (369) = (369)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  YEE3FRR RS - (908) - - - - - (908) 908 -
Equity-settled share option arrangements  LVEREEHRRERY

(note 25) (#23) 1T nm - - 0 - - 5568 - 5568
Transfer of share option reserve upon ~~ NERE R U EREIE

the forfeiture of share options (i)

(note 25) - - - - (47) - 41 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve EETETEE - - - 5,863 - - (5,863) - - -
At31 December 2021 R01E128318 151 35T 40 BATF 29 40 (25939 37486 - 374386

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHBEREOESEAVBMRARANGEAEHEE A
RMB374,735,000 (31 December 2020: RMB165,201,000) in the consolidated R # 374,735,000 7T (2020F 12 A31H : AR®

statement of financial position.

165,201,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERENER

Year ended 31 December 2021 EHZE2021412A318IEFE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt sE AR% T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&EBEBRERE
Profit before tax MR FR R A 167,387 135,955
Adjustments for: AT BIEFE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — ¥)% « E LEREITE 7 4,957 7,804
Depreciation of investment property REMERE 7 180 454
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAREERE 7 1,540 1,138
Amortisation of intangible assets G Y 7 22 23
Unrealised foreign exchange gains REIRE N Yz 3,549 1,100
Imputed discount on deposits received BlizemmERLR 5 = (8,510)
Interest income from financial assets BATFEFAERNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss B U A 5 (795) (615)
Interest income from financial assets RN EN e REE
measured at amortised cost FEHA - (39
Finance costs BATS AR 29,164 8,797
Bank interest income RITHBHA 5 (518) (1,295)
Other income attributable to the receipt of LSt B R S 4B L My E b i A
donation of a vehicle (30) -
Write-down of inventories to net realisable FEMRZE A ZIRFE
value 7 - 3,248
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses on B G EWTEREER
trade receivables B, (Bm) 7 1,020 (350)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses ST ATENRFIE - E Y RIE
on financial assets included in prepayments, LMEMEENSREERE
other receivables and other assets EEEE, (BE) 7 (164) 48
206,312 147,758
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B ZREWGIE K R ERR
bills receivables (g an) 364,066 (547,627)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TR - HtERRIERE
other receivables and other assets BERD,/(8m) (34,259) 25,852
Decrease in inventories FERD 181,291 13,457
Decrease/(increase) in payments in advance B FIER D, () 627 (288)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables Z 5N FIEE N, (i) (277,387) 399,854
Increase in amounts due from related parties JE Uk B ES 7 R IE L N (11) -
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and HoAth FE A FROB R FE R B N,
accruals R (93,697) 114,880
Decrease in contract liabilities GHEERD (57) (10,776)
Cash generated from operations BEMERE 346,885 143,110
Interest received 2 E 518 1,295
Tax paid BAHE (41,691) (7,105)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHRBRERE 305,712 137,300
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 2SR ERER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F 12831 HILFE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR%T ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #REEEFfBRERE
Purchase of items of property, plant and HBEWME  WELEREER
equipment (23,522) (372)
Addition of leasehold land NEHETH = (49,114)
Purchase of wealth management products BEIBEARATERTA
classified as financial assets at fair value BRNERHEEDN
through profit or loss BEE M (366,136) (164,000)
Redemption of wealth management products BRIDEARATERTA
classified as financial assets at fair value BT REEN
through profit or loss BHEm 366,136 164,000
Interest income from financial assets at fair BAHERT AEBZRR
value through profit or loss SREENFEHA 5 795 615
Interest income from financial assets measured IR SER At BN S REE
at amortised cost A EUA 5 = 39
Redemption of financial assets measured at BRI H AT 2
amortised cost TREE = 1,990
Net cash flows used in investing activities  REEEBFARSRETHE (22,727) (46,842)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬁﬁ%iﬁ)ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ;ﬁ%
Principal portion of lease payments HENHRARSH (719) (990)
Interest portion of lease payments HENZFOFEHS 13(b) (55) (95)
Interest paid BEAFLE (22,417) (6,770)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings 1T R A MRS A 210,000 120,330
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITREMER (77,937) (226,312)
Decrease in other payables and accruals H e 508 KBRS E R (115,962) (98,605)
Issue of new shares BITHR 69,806 -
Exercise of share options orid i 5,568 -
Increase in pledged time deposits B E B FOE N (55,015) -
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables TBRIE - EfEREIER
and other assets HibEERD (110,377) 42,567
Net cash flows used in financing activities = BEEEHFARSRETHE (97,108) (169,875)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 2SR ERER
Year ended 31 December 2021 & Z=2021512831BILFE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BsE ARETT AREF T
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BREeRBREEEYEN
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) 38 185,877 (79,417)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HNFEDE RE T EFE (3,590) (1,574)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ F#IR& MR EEY 143,765 224,756
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREER
END OF YEAR HeZEY 326,052 143,765
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND REeRASEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS EERRDM
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the MIRARATSIIRE &
statement of financial position HEEEY 19 326,052 143,765
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe BE&REBRFAIIEER
statement of cash flows REZEEY 326,052 143,765
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAFEERAR MY RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

Corporate and Group Information

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 March
2015. The registered office address of the Company is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at
Room 2403, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong with effect from 20 November 2020.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in marketing,
promotion and channel management services for improved human
plasma-based pharmaceuticals, antibiotics and other pharmaceuticals
focused on therapeutic areas and complementary to human plasma-
based products and other fast-growing categories in Mainland
China. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of directors of the Company (the “Directors”), Risun
Investments Limited (“Risun”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), is the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

AEREEER

BB RBEZERBR AT AAT]) HR2015
FI3R16BERSHESTMKXINERAR - K
A A FE 9% S b3k 23 P.0. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands e NARI BB EBLEMBUNE BT
ER 115K ZH02403F - H20209F11 820
HEBAERR o

RAEE - ARBREMB AR (Gl AEE])
TERPENMNEREABMTER AR
MBI AL E A MR M M A REE
RERIEMOEMERNMISEE  HEMRE
BIERY - AREEX2EBOELENAFEIL &

ARABIESZ([EZF])RA  Risun Investments
Limited ([Risun ) (fERBHBM RS ([ B
BREE MK A7) BARARHE AR

E-viS i YN
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021

2021%F12A31H

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

1.

ARAREBER(E)

MELRER

ARFHBRRFBENT

Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRR R BRITEER AR N
% =Rl g ik EMRA BEEEIM TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef# it
% %
Starwell Group Holding Limited 26 November 2013 Us$50,000 100 - Investment holding
HEEEZRERAT BVI 50,0005 RERKR
2013F11H26H
RES#BARES
Bright Ritzy Limited 5 August 2016 Us$1 100 - Investment holding
REBRLT BVI (E REZR
201658 A5H
EBGERES
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals 17 February 2011 US$10,000,000 100 - Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd0 PRC/Mainland China 10,000,000% 7T HEER
HEENRBEBR LR 201142A178
R/ HEN
Hong Kong Prosperous Group 20 December 2013 HK$100 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Holding Limited Hong Kong 1008 7T HEZm
BEEREEIRERAR 2013F12A208
Glorious Empire Limited 26 August 2016 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
ERARAF Hong Kong 1%L RAER
201658 A 268
1 1 0 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2021



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021

1.

2021%F12A31H

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

REREFEHR(E)

MELRER (&)

Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SR MR BRTZER/ KRFES
£ EEEE Sk HREN BREEDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
B M
% %
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals 1 April 2011 RMB 100,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd.0 PRC/Mainland China A &#100,000,0007T HEER
MR EEEEREE LR 201154818
HE/ B
Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology 25 November 2013 RMB1,000,000 - 100 Research and development on
Co., Ltd.0 PRC/Mainland China A R%1,000,0007T pharmaceutical products
M| R YRR AR AR 2013F 114250 BoHE
B/ RE R,
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical 26 February 2014 RMB22,000,000 - 100 Providing warehouse facilities for
Technology Co., Ltd.® PRC/Mainland China A& #22,000,0007C pharmaceutical products
REBERARERMEREERFY  2014F2A26R REEREERE
B/ RE R,
Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang 4 March 2015 RMB100,000 - 100 Consultation on medical and
Pharmaceutical Technology PRC/Mainland China AR#100,0007T biological technology
Co., Ltd. ("Chengdu Hengsheng")i" 201543 A48 BB REDRIES
REAERLABERMERETRT  FE/FEARD

(TF#vER )0
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021

2021%F12A31H

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1.

ARREEER(E)
MBARER(E)

112

Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
S MR BRTZER/ KRRES
g EEE ik HREN BREEDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE M
% %
Xizang Linzhi Ziguang pharmaceutical 17 November 2014 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of Pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd. ("Linzhi Ziguang")® PRC/Mainland China  AR#10,000,0007T HEZR
BRE RN EREREEDF 20145114178
(THZ &k )0 HE/ B,
Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd.0 25 August 2016 RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
EHE(LB)ESERAR0 PRC/Mainland China A #5,000,0007C HEEM
201658 A25H
HEL/ B R,
Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading 15 November 2016 RMB30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China ~ AR #30,000,0007C RERKR
BEERBREZERAF 2016511 A158
HE/ B R
Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals 15 May 2007 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Co., Ltd® PRC/Mainland China ~ AR #10,000,0007C HEZER
ERmAEEARAF 200745A 158
B/ RE R,
XKR Prosperous Holding PTE. Ltd.( 6 August 2020 SGD10,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
KBRS EZRERAF Singapore 10,0004 I3 7T HEEm
202058 H6H
il
Macao Sinco Limited.® 1 February 2021 MOP25,000 - 100 International trade
BFERIR— ABRAFM Macau JAPF9#:25,0007C BRE5
20212418
P
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz

31 December 2021 2021412 H31H

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1.

ARREEER(E)
MBARER(E)

Place and date of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
S MR BRTLER KRRES
a1 ARSI AR BEREAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
=k M
% %
Beijing Sinco Biological Medical 9 August 2021 RMB2,000,000 - 100 Market promotion
Technology Co., Ltd.0 PRC/Mainland China A K#2,000,0007T TSk E
ERERRENBEREARRFY  2021589H
HE/ B,
Haikou Sinco Biological Medical 29 August 2021 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Market promotion
Technology Co., Ltd.® PRC/Mainland China  AK#10,000,0007T TSR
BOERKENBEREAERARY  202168/29H
HEL/ B R,
Sheenos Limited 30 November 2021 US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
BVI 50,0003 7T REER
20214114308
EBRARES
()  Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Sinco () MIERREEFRETAR ([ HEE 5
Pharmaceuticals”), Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd. (“Sinco ¥ -ERF(EH)EZERAA(TEBEE
Shanghai”), Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao B EEERERBEZERAR(EEEXK]D
Yusheng”) and Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu RAEEERIA B EGR AR ([ AEBERIER D IRE
Sinco Pharmaceuticals”) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned FREARAMBE([HER ] )EEEBAEIINEEED
enterprises under the law of the People’s Republic of China (“the ES
PRC").
(i) These subsidiaries are registered as domestic enterprises under PRC law. (i) ZEWNBRAFRBETBIEEEAMARNEDRE -
(iliy  The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under (iiiy  EMIEB A RMREFT INE EMBAR T M AING B
the law of the Republic of Singapore. B
(iv)  The subsidiary is registered as a one-person limited liability company (v  ZMBRRRBRFVERTMA—ABRAF -

under the law of Macau.

113

2021 FF3f EMERBEERAR DT



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.1 REEE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"), and International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations
Committee Interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee that remain in effect, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain wealth management products which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(¢)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.1 RBEE(E)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained, and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

116

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest
rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR"). The amendments provide a practical expedient
to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements
of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank loans denominated
in RMB based on the China Loan Prime Rate as at 31 December
2021. If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced
by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply the above-
mentioned practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings provided that the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant modification
gain or loss will arise as a result of applying the amendments to
these changes.
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2021%F12A31H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received COVID-19-related
rent concessions and plans to apply the practical expedient
when it becomes applicable within the allowed period of
application.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

I[FRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to

IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts24

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction?
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,

Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 417

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,

IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning

before 1 January 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 EEMEERENNEPRE ISR E %

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS
37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combination for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from
the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 EEMEERENNEPRE ISR E %

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an
effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group'’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 EEMEERENNEPRE ISR E %

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences for transactions related to leases. Upon
initial application of these amendments, the Group will recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 EEMEERENNEPRE ISR E %

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group'’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial application
without restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to
be applicable to the Group are as follows:

e IFRS 9 financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

o IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain wealth management products at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz

31 December 2021

2021%F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful lives
Land and buildings 34-60 years
Machinery 10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Leasehold improvement 3-5 years or over the remaining

term, whichever is shorter
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of investment properties to their residual value over their
estimated useful life of 46 years.

Any gain or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The principal estimated useful life of intangible assets is as
follows:

Software 5 years

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 TESHBEHRE(E)

(Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Office premises and warehouse 2 to 5 years

Leasehold land 50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
on which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group elected to present the lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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24 FESHBEBMEE)

HE (&)
FEBERFATN ()
(b) #HEERE

HERBERHEPASNNRENTRE
RHEERK A R®ER - HENKEREHE
NR(BEEEFRENE)REMAEKEE
BE - BURR IS BN R ey r] A 5K
ARIEHBRERSBBEERINNSHE
HEMRTEBRASEAIERETENE
BEERNTEE  YEHRRAEE
TEKLHEEREZRNBELTEEEAER
IEFEE TR o W IEBURIIE B A R H
AEEENRELRBENROEMHE
REEIE AR AR o

REEHEENRNRER AR HERS
NMEITZEE  AEBERHEERK B
MIBERRANEE - RFAHE 8
ERESEMNENRBRAENER  IE
A HEEN KM o I - R E
7 EHIEMEE - HENKEREE(F
IEE SN E BB EBORKEENKE
PRE S ) B BARME Er R EEaT A
REw)  HERABMNREEMSENLE -

BEEENGEVBRRERELES)
a



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in other income in profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the leases are accounted for as
finance leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 TESHBEHRE(E)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through Profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component,

the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 TESHBEHRE(E)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables
and accruals, amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender or substantially different terms, or the terms an existing
liability are subsequently modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in “finance costs” in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods.
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income from distribution services is recognised when services
are completed at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Subject to
shareholders’ agreement, the Company may also allot and issue
certain new shares in the Company for the purpose of providing
incentives for specific employees to remain employed in the Group
and to motivate them to strive for the further development and
expansion of the Group. Employees (including the directors) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 25 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in a defined central pension scheme managed by the
local municipal government of the areas in Mainland China in which
they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll of these employees
to the central pension scheme. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. The Company’s
contributions have been capped to up to HK$1,500 per month
since 1 June 2014 for each of its employees in Hong Kong and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Housing fund

Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund administered
by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. At a meeting of the Board
held on 30 March 2022, the Directors resolved not to pay final
dividends to Shareholders for the Reporting Period.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared. In the event that the interim dividends
are paid out of the share premium account, shareholders’ approval
at an extraordinary general meeting is needed. When these interim
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 FESHBEHE(E)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 XES:BEME(E)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their profit or loss is translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

Revenue recognition

To determine the timing of revenue recognition, the Group applies
judgements in determining the point in time at which customers
obtain control of the promised pharmaceuticals and the Group
satisfies the performance obligations. Depending on the nature
and terms of the agreements, the Group may recognise revenue
when the pharmaceuticals inspection report is obtained or when
pharmaceuticals are received by customers.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 17 to financial statements.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”) and Hong Kong corporate
income tax (“HK CIT")

The Group's operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to PRC CIT and the operating subsidiary in Hong Kong is subject
to Hong Kong CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to PRC CIT and HK CIT have not been confirmed by the
relevant local tax authorities, objective estimates based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision for PRC CIT and HK CIT to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact the income
tax expense and tax provision in the period in which the differences
realise. The carrying amount of tax payable as at 31 December 2021
was RMB12,826,000 (31 December 2020: RMB21,999,000).
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products
of a similar nature. Management reassesses these estimates at the
end of each reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories
as at 31 December 2021 was RMB61,270,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB242,561,000) and the impairment provision for inventories for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was nil (2020: RMB3,248,000)
(note 7).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be
utilised based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2021 was
RMB860,000 (31 December 2020: RMB646,000). Further details are
given in note 15 to financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets with definite lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4,
The Group's revenue and contribution to consolidated results are
mainly derived from its sales of human albumin solution, antibiotics
and other pharmaceuticals focused on therapeutic areas and
complementary to human plasma-based products and other fast-
growing categories in Mainland China, which are regarded as a
single reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s senior
management for purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment. In addition, the principal non-current assets employed i
by the Group are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no
segment analysis is presented other than entity-wide disclosures.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wi
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers RERPA DR KE
Sales of goods BEmiHE 2,024,055 2,049,803
Revenue from contracts with customers REAEESHNE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () W ERBE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT
Types of pharmaceuticals EnER
Human albumin solution AMBEH TR 1,973,223 1,889,012
Antibiotics (Axetine and Medocef) MAEE(Z AR R 2 E ) 50,832 160,791
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEP ARG ERE 2,024,055 2,049,803

Geographical markets

All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during

each of the two years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was
attributable to customers located in Mainland China, the place
of domicile of the Group’s principal operating entities. The
Group's non-current assets are all located in Mainland China.
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4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

()

(ir)

154

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during
each of the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was
recognised when goods were transferred at a point in time.

4, WmREE

(@

D ERE R ()

KEFFENNWE(E)

Wozs ERIBFHA ()

BB 25 19 B BT

HZE2021F K2020F 12 A31H L FES
FAEEFAREREFAHHKZENE
EEMNEERBER

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised TRETRTARE BN E D EBEELRR
in the current reporting period that were included in the LHARNER AR SRS ¢
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBFT
Revenue recognised that was included in RS AEHBED
contract liabilities at the beginning of the B R
reporting period:
Sale of pharmaceuticals (note 21) e (B E21) 27,732 8,742
Information about major customers FEEFEH
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted RAZTEEZPERIRE10% A _EMlK
to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: wmESINT
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Customer A BEA 566,149 679,377
Customer B =FB O *
Customer C EFC & *

* Less than 10%

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of pharmaceuticals

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
pharmaceuticals and payment is generally due within 90 to 180
days (2020: 90 to 240 days) from delivery, except for certain
customers who make payments in advance prior to delivery of
the pharmaceuticals.
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5.

6.

2021%F12A31H

Other Income and Gains

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

5. HthWA KWz
AUMEAMRARMESH AT :

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR% T ARET T
Bank interest income RITHRBHA 518 1,295
Imputed discount on deposits received (note 22(c)  BUix S L EREIR (H5722(c) - 8,510
Interest income from financial assets at fair value REEAFERF ABRD
through profit or loss (note 7) SREENFBWA(Hit7) 795 615
Interest income from financial assets measured at RAREFENAGTED
amortised cost (note 7) SRMEEMNEWANEE7) = 39
Government grants* U B 1,152 447
Net rental income from investment property REMEHTHS WA FE
(notes 7, 13) (a7~ 13) 172 290
Service income ARAEUA 8,284 2,434
Others Hith 30 39
10,951 13,669
*  There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the * I B B BT R BRI R BT IR e A E IR -
government grants.
Finance Costs 6. BIEERA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BRAMBERAN DT -

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Interest on bank loans and other borrowings RITE R R EMERF S 21,390 2,833

Interest on deferred settlement of trade payables BEHEEE 5 BN = 3,937

Interest on lease liabilities (note 13) HEaBENBHZ13) 55 95
Finance charges attributable to issue of FS{E B EIEI S E R

letters of credit 1,141 -
Unwinding of discount on long-term FRERALER B WELR iR &

deposits received (note 22(c)) (Hiat22(c)) 6,578 1,932

29,164 8,797
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7. Profit Before Tax
The Group's profit before tax was arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBL AT Z A

REBOBBAPRMENR,(GTA)TFIEE :

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i) AR% T ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 1,659,105 1,775,977
Depreciation of items of property, plant and ME - BENMREBER
equipment e 11 4,957 7,804
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREERE 13 1,540 1,138
Depreciation of investment property REMENE 12 180 454
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 14 22 23
Research and development expenses e E=gzE! 26,160 812
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses AT R IBERERIE
recognised on: EEEE, (BE) -
Trade receivables B 5 WA 17 1,020 (350)
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTAFERFUIA - Ef
other receivables and other assets FEUCEIE L K B
MemEE 18 (164) 48
Short-term lease payments EHRE N 13(c) 1,000 433
Auditors’ remuneration 2t Gkl 2,850 3,100
Employee benefit expense EERAFX
(including directors’ remuneration (BIEN ST
as set out in note 8): EEHM) -
Wages and salaries TITENHS 13,731 10,389
Welfare and other benefits B R EA RS 1,366 388
Pension scheme contributions RIREEIERK
— Defined contribution fund —ERHRES 1,925 491
Housing fund FEAES
— Defined contribution fund —EREHRES 551 457
Total employee benefit expense EERFIFS B 17,573 11,725
Foreign exchange losses, net SN &S 1R EE 3,549 6,058
Write-down of inventories to net FEMRE
realisable value AR FE - 3,248
Interest income from financial assets at BAFER ABED
fair value through profit or loss TREENSHA 5 (795) (615)
Interest income from financial assets R SEAGTER
measured at amortised cost TREEFSKA - (39
Net rental income from investment property & WS U A F5E (172) (290)
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERIETRARHFMUREBR
S#HES
RIEEBMRAES ETRA - EBDRAEHIE
383(1)(a) * (b) ~ (O R()ifE B2 7 (B BB 8 H F2s
ERDAPIB2HHE - FRESREBTRA
BHMMT

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREBFT

Fees ok 732 693

Other emoluments: Hipe -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R LEDER 2,338 2,134
Pension scheme contributions RIRFEIERK

— Defined contribution fund —ERHRES 51 44

3,121 2,871

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

(a) BAFHTES
FRASMELERITESNRS S

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFT

Mr. Liu Wenfang B EE 183 160
Mr. Wang Qing EREEA 183 160
Mr. Lau Ying Kit IR E 183 160
Mr. Bai Zhizhong BHEREE 183 53
732 533

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year.

FABERMN TELIFRITES A
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31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8 EERIETHRAEFMUREZE

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) SHEE(E)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) HITEERFEITHAE
officer
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Fees contributions Total
e 2 Efke
REMEF e AR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TT AR®TR AR®T T
2021 20214
Executive directors: WITES
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin* — B 2,338 - 51 2,389
- Ms. Zhang Zhijie —REGR T - = = -
2,338 - 51 2,389
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Fees contributions Total
E A= BRe
REWER we IR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
2020 20204
Executive directors: HITES
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin —BHWEAE 2,134 - 44 2,178
— Ms. Zhang Zhijie —REGLT - 160 - 160
2,134 160 44 2,338
Notes: et -
(@  Mr. Huang Xiangbin is also the chief executive officer of the (@) BEHEWEETREARTITHAEH -
Company.
(b)  Ms. Zhang Zhijie resigned as an executive director due to personal b) FEHALXLTRBEARBAEFHTHRITES
reasons, with effect from 8 January 2021. E2021F 1 ASH AR ©
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAREEFREXR B RE T
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. ZHE -
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31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8.

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director (2020: one director), details of whose remuneration
are set out above. Details of the remuneration during the year
of the remaining four (2020: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor a chief executive officer of the
Company are as follows:

EERFETHAEFHMURTEER

aFHEE(E)

(0 EEREFEE
FR A4 BRaFEERE—XES
(2020 : —RESR) - EFHMFBEN L
X o HEpPN4 (2020 : UE)WIEE FK
AAREBTRAENRSHFEENER
B ENEFBAT

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REET 2,129 2,041
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIHR 119 86
2,248 2,127

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

HFHNF T HENFESHESEESNH AN
T

2021 2020

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z21,000,000/ 7T
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

Income Tax

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and BVI. The assessable profits of the Group derived from
Hong Kong are subject to a two-tiered profit tax rate regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits
are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%,).

The provision for PRC CIT is based on the respective PRC CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of Mainland China for the year. All subsidiaries domiciled
in the PRC were subject to PRC CIT at a rate of 25% during the two
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

Fris®i
BEHSHSREBHERRESHHRARER -
NEBEDBSMNHERS R ABHERESHE
AIFTISHL « AL EIR BB EM IR /BIZM
WA TS T RET - [BREREFIAYE 2,000,000
7 70 (20204F : 2,000,000 7T ) #%8.25% (2020
F 1 8.25% ) IBIREH - HeRERT A Rz
16.5%(20204F : 16.5% ) KT KT -

AR 3 FTS L BB TO IR B R B i A5 AT
BRI KSR AR BTRE TE 2 B3 FR 5 B 7 3 PR B
PRI R BEAEHBERE - BE20214F
N2020F 12 A31 B IEMEFE - AP B
FrAM B AR ZBRTBEMEMEHE25%H
o

FAREYHIEARBMT -

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Current — Hong Kong BIER— &8
Charge for the year FRMAL 12,121 8,049
Current — Mainland China BIER — AR B
Charge for the year FERREY 20,397 14,693
Adjustments in respect of current tax of PR F RV IR
previous years - (4,999)
Deferred tax (note 15) BRI TA (AT 15) (214) 75
Total tax charge for the year FRRIERY A5 32,304 17,818
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9. Income Tax (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the applicable tax rates for companies within the Group to the tax
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

9. FEH(GE)

BEARAKEE T RANRERGTEORBADS
ME R RIS IR BRI RS O RIARM
FSRRINTS

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Profit before tax KR F A 167,387 135,955
Tax at the respective statutory tax rates BEBEEMEFENNIE
— PRC subsidiaries at 25% — BB A AIR25% 5T & 20,585 11,959
— the Company and Hong Kong subsidiary —ARREIREBB AR
at8.25% 128.25%51 & 141 143
— the Company and Hong Kong subsidiary —ARREIREBHB AR
at 16.5% 1%16.5%:1 & 10,219 17,011
Differences previously not recognised BERERNERE (2,137) (811
Tax losses utilised from previous periods A BT BREMNTIEEE = (10,429)
Expenses not deductible for tax* R 3,199 3,132
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences ARHERR O] R s FE A
not recognised Db % (924) 924
Adjustments in respect of current tax of SREATFRNEATIE
previous years - (4,999)
Income not subject to tax BERTA (2 -
Tax losses not recognised AERT AR R 1,223 888
32,304 17,818
* Expenses not deductible for tax for the years ended 31 December 2021 * HE2021F12 4310 &20205F12A31BILFE

and 31 December 2020 mainly consisted of administrative expenses,
foreign exchange differences incurred by offshore companies and fees
for not obtaining formal invoices. These expenses are not expected to
be deductible for tax.

AR T EREBINARMELENTTR
FX - ERZEUANRARREGERERNER - %
EFX A/ TN -
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31 December 2021

2021%F12A31H

10. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary

Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 of RMB135,083,000 (2020:
RMB118,137,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,736,830,311 (2020: 1,691,890,585) in issue during the
year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, adjusted to reflect the impact of a dilution as the exercise
prices of the Company’s outstanding share options were lower than
the average market prices for the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2021. No adjustment has been made to the
basic earnings per share amount presented for the year ended 31
December 2020 in respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the

10.

ARAREREREEAERLERERN
BREAABFREEREZ20219412 8318 1E
FREARAEAEREAEABERNARE
135,083,000 7T (20204 : A KR # 118,137,000

L) U RFARADEHTERBRMEFHH
1,736,830,311/% (20204 : 1,691,890,585/% )&t
:ﬁ o

E%%%%ﬂ%%ﬁ$“—ﬁLﬁﬁﬁﬁA%w
FREFETE - WIEH AR RBARE] HARTT
ﬁ%h%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁmaimmiuﬂmat
FEARABRMEHMEBR THOEETE - £
RAR B A TEBRENTEERNFARA
AIRMDAFIIHE - B M EE2020912
A3MBEFESIMNERENZF S EEL#
SHIE o

Company’s outstanding share options were higher than the average
market prices for the Company’s shares during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based STEERERLRESANER
on:
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T ARETFTT
Earnings &7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of AARIEREDSEE ARG
the Company 135,083 118,137
Number of shares
REOEE
2021 2020
Shares B&in
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR EBRERBFNEA
in issue during the year used in the basic BT E R INE T 58
earnings per share calculation 1,736,830,311 1,691,890,585
Effect of dilution — weighted average g — LB INE T

number of ordinary shares 613,267 -

1,737,443,578 1,691,890,585
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31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

11. Property, Plant and Equipment 1. Y% BERKE
Leasehold
improvements
Land and and office Motor  Construction in
Buildings Machinery equipment vehicles progress Total
L ‘ .
THEEF e WATRE AE TEIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR AEETR
31 December 2021 021£12831R
Cost: A
At 31 December 2020 1*2020812731H
and 1 January 2021 R0E1R1H 175,163 1,509 10,946 18518 31,37 2313713
Additions HE 2,150 - 136 31 2,58 2,575
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12831H 197313 1,509 11,082 18,549 33,49 261,948
Accumulated depreciation: ZHiE:
At 31 December 2020 R2020E12A31H
and 1 January 2021 RONE1A18 21,983 401 9,252 17,488 - 49,124
Provided for the year (note 7) ERBE ) 4434 133 13 107 - 4957
At 31 December 2021 R021E12A318 26417 534 9,535 17,59 - 54,081
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2020 1*2020812731A 153,180 1,108 1,694 1,030 31,37 188,249
At 31 December 2021 R01E18318 170,8% 75 1547 95 3495 207,867
31 December 2020 020£12831R
Cost: A
At 31 December 2019 120198127318
and 1 January 2020 R200E1A1H 176,347 1563 10,903 18,445 31,48 238506
Additions hE - 139 8 73 " 3N
Other transfer-out EhEY (1,184) - - - (128 (1312)
Disposals i - (193) - - - (193)
At 31 December 2020 HIONENAIR 175163 1,509 10946 18518 31237 31373
Accumulated depreciation: ZitHE:
At 31 December 2019 12019%12431A
and 1 January 2020 R200E1R18 17335 38 8576 15274 - 1513
Provided for the year (note 7) EnBEmE) 468 266 676 2214 - 7804
Disposals i} - (193) - - - (193)
At 31 December 2020 R2020£12A31H 21,983 401 9,252 17488 - 49,124
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2019 1201951274318 159,012 1235 2317 317 31,48 196,993
At 31 December 2020 #2020£12831H 153,180 1,108 1,694 1,030 3137 188,249

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s certain buildings with a
net carrying amount of RMB57,159,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB70,296,000) were pledged to two banks to secure the Group's
bank loans (note 23 (a)). As at 31 December 2021, the Group's

certain buildings with a net carrying amount of RMB9,967,000
(31 December 2020: nil) were pledged to obtain bank facilities of

RMB60,000,000.

R2021F 128318 AEEEEFEAAR
# 57,159,000 7T (202012 A31H : AR
70,296,0007T ) K& THEFE IR FMERTT

ERAKEIR

o

1TTENX

RER (M 5E23() « B

2021F 128318 A5EEFEEFERAARE
9,967,0007t(20205 128318 : T)WETEF
IR LAEEA R #60,000,000TTHISRITREE ©
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz

31 December 2021

12. Investment Property

2021%F12A31H

12. BEWE

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFTT

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1A1BHEREE 6,679 7,133
Depreciation provided for the year (note 7) FREFHRITE (H517) (180) (454)
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 A3 BHEREE 6,499 6,679

Notes:

(a)

(b)
()

(d)

164

Wiz -

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the investment property was
estimated to be approximately RMB8,292,000 (2020: RMB8,292,000).
The valuation was performed in 2020 by Asia-Pacific Consulting and
Appraisal Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer.
There is no significant change during the year and no revaluation
has been carried out. Selection criteria of the external valuer
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The valuation was estimated
using discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future rental income or market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, where appropriate. The fair value measurement
hierarchy of the investment property requires certain significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The Group's investment property is situated in Mainland China and
held under medium lease terms.

As at 31 December 2021, the investment property was leased to a third
party under operating leases.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment property
with a net carrying amount of RMB6,499,000 (31 December
2020: RMB6,679,000) was pledged to obtain bank facilities of
RMB150,000,000 (31 December 2020: RMB50,000,000) granted to the
Group.
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(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

R2021F12A318 - WEMEN R FEGTNA
AR #8,292,0007T (20204 : A R #8,292,000
7)o [HEHE L XA ERMMEMEATHE
AR ARN2020FEIT - FAE|EKNEL
REITEM - N EMEEMORBIZERENSM
o BECBEUMUREEHIBEEITE - HE
THRRAR S AR 2R AR & Uk A S AR Rt 26 R 61 T RB 8L
PEMNTHHES /A A (ER ) FEAIRE
SRETEREITERT - REMENAFEFNERE
LHFEBETEAN T ERE AR (FE34) -

4 45 B AR 4 o B PO AR e ER A
A -

M20216F12A318 - A ERKEEHE LA
F—RHE=H-

MR2021E 128318 AEBFEEFEASA
R ¥#6,499,0007T (202012 A31H : AR
6,679,0007T) I E W B2 HIF ABER TASE
EriRTTELE A R 150,000,0007T (20204 12
A318H : AR#50,000,0007T) °



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

13. #HE

13. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises and a warehouse
used in its operations. The Group entered into certain long-term
lease contracts for items of office premises. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land with lease periods of
50 years. Lump sum payments were made yearly upfront to acquire
certain leased office premises with lease periods of five years, and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of the leases
after the payments. For other leases, payments were made monthly,
quarterly and semi-annually. Leases of office premises have lease
terms between 1 and 5 years. Leases of a warehouse have lease
terms within five years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and

REBEREBRA
FEERBEEMARAENEREBENEES
#) o AEBBMMAEMERBFILETRUHEE
BH) - ERN RN FAESER RS0 8
HETH - FFEARN —RENFTIARSHEBR
hFNETHERBRAEYE - HFRBEHEERK
RBAXMEMRESE - HtEERIEA -
FEREFFFIN - BREYEHENER/E
5% - EEMEENMEMATFUAN - — KM=
AEETEARREANALTE R BEAE
o

@) RAEEE
AEENERREENFANEEENE

the movements during the year are as follows: BT
Office
Leasehold premises and
land a warehouse Total
WAEYE
HELTH kRRE Hat
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 202091 A1H - 1,041 1,041
Additions NE 49,114 917 50,031
Depreciation charge (note 7) TERZ (Hi77) (82) (1,056) (1,138)
As at 31 December 2020 MW2020612H31H
and 1 January 2021 K2021%F1A1H8 49,032 902 49,934
Depreciation charge (note 7) WERS(WZ7) (982) (558) (1,540)
As at 31 December 2021 2021412 8318 48,050 344 48,394

The Group’s leasehold land included in right-of-use assets is
situated in Mainland China and held under long lease terms.

AEEFAEREEENHEE LR T
B I AR B R HE LA -

2021 64 mpEBEpparas 169



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

13. Leases (Continued) 13. AE(&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERFBRA(E)
(b) Lease liabilities b) MHEEBRE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEBBERNFANREERZSNAT

during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January MM A1ERREE 1,103 1,176
New leases Eriiss = 917
Accretion of interest recognised during FATERE T 2IE N
the year (note 6) (Hiate) 55 95
Payments (NE (774) (1,085)
Carrying amount at 31 December M2 A31 BRIREE 384 1,103
Analysed into: DR -
Current portion mENE S 384 736
Non-current portion FEMENE S = 367
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 33 HEAEMEIHBA SRS HRERME33
to the financial statements. HEE -
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31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

13. Leases (Continued) 13. A& (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBEREBEAE)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (0 HEZTEREEHENSTELOT -
are as follows:
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HEBENR(Hit6) 55 95
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 7) BB ENEFRZ (H/577) 1,540 1,138
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in ARG HAHENF
administrative expenses) (note 7) (REATTERAR) (B3 7) 1,000 433
Total amount recognised in profit or loss BRI AE5E 2,595 1,666
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 30(c) to (d) FERSRHEERYEREMTEI0(QH
the financial statements. 5= -
The Group as a lessor REBEEREEA

The Group leases its investment property consisting of one
commercial property in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. The net rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB172,000
(2020: RMB290,000) (note 5).

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

AEERBECEHELHREHLIRENE - Al
AR A — B E W - HERHR—REK
APXMRES - WRTEREERATIRE A
Bl -FR AEERIABRSWAFBEAR
#5172,0007C(20204F : AR%290,0007T) (FIzE
5) ¢

M20219F 128318 » AEEREEBE S/ A]
B SRS R R AR BRI EERNK
s

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREBFT

Within one year —FR 170 511
After one year but within two years —FREMFERN = 170
170 681

167
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31 December 2021 2021412 H31H

14. Intangible Assets

14. BEE

Software
B
RMB'000
AREBFIT
31 December 2021 2021%12831H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated amortisation 720214181 BIRAAN » HIk 2ET#E 22
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) FNEHRE R E7) (22)
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12A31H -
At 31 December 2021: M20214128318 :
Cost DN 403
Accumulated amortisation (note 7) BRI (HE7) (403)
Net carrying amount REVHE =
Software
B
RMB'000
AREBFT
31 December 2020 20205128318
At 1 January 2020: 202051 A18 -
Cost A AR 45
Accumulated amortisation (note 7) BRI (HE7) (23)
Net carrying amount BREFE 22
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January 2021: 2020512 A31H K2021F1 A18 -
Cost DN 403
Accumulated amortisation KT (381)
Net carrying amount BREFE 22
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15. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows:

15. EILEF1E
FRETHBEENSESNT :

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
At beginning of year REA] 646 721
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRNEBRTRD
during the year (note 9) EIERIE(A7579) 214 (75)
At end of year REFER 860 646
Notes: Mzt
(@) As at 31 December 2021, the Group had accumulated tax losses (@) FA2021F12A318 » AEBRFPBEAMEED

(b)

(9

arising in Mainland China of RMB13,278,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB17,616,000) that would expire in one to five years. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets related to the PRC subsidiaries have been provided (b)
at the enacted corporate income tax rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding ©
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign

investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement

is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31

December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there

is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the

foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group

is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by

those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings

generated from 1 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2021, no deferred tax liability has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future after their assessment based on factors which
included the dividend policy, the level of working capital required for
the Group’s operations and the expansion of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB114,914,000 (31 December 2020: RMB62,851,000).

ZEtFAEEE A ARE13,278,0007T (2020412
A31H : AR#17,616,00070) * R —ERHF
REHE - WERZSBEEERECHEELE R
E B EE R BT K] 4575 R T0E T Al (4K 855%
EHIEEE -

BRPEMNE R RMRERIREEC R EMD
RIS E25% TR A

RIEF B EAERIE - BhR P BB L F S
BAMERIINRIZEES RO EEZKI10%HTE
M - %3 T BE20084F1 A1 BBAER - WiEA
72007912 A31 BERZEF] - {8 B A i )
FIEE BRI AR DR RBHE - BIAR
AREMHTBINFHE - XREBMAERARER10% -
At - AEBEEHZERTPBEAMKIZAOHER
AL E 2008 1 A1 HREER BT DK
BEmIEIH o

HZE2021F 128318 - WERAEERFBERA
K ST Y B B A BB AR AN TR AN L A0 R IE (2 M
BIMWENHERRECHEEE - EFERA
ERBREBOR - AREEBIFENZEELERKT
MAEBBEAPENBNEFEHAZETTHER
RAE ZEWBRRRAI BB RTKAED RS
RAEF) o KA RIN P B AR AIH B A R&
RENERIEEZE2BEHARE114,914,0007T
(20209128318 : AR%62,851,0007T) #ER
EEFRIBELE -
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz

31 December 2021

2021%F12A31H

16. Inventories 16. 78
At the end of the reporting period, all inventories represent RIMEER - FTEFESEMEBENES -
purchased pharmaceutical products.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's inventories with a carrying R2021F 128318 - AEENEEEAAR
amount of RMB56,339,000 (31 December 2020: RMB241,577,000) # 56,339,000 (2020 12 A31H : AR
were pledged to secure the Group’s other payables in respect of 241,577,0007C) (IF EE A A S E A BE O R
import agent services as further detailed in note 22(b) to financial IR ARFS Y B fh FEAN R IB IR TR - E— B ERN
statements. BRI EE22(b) ©
17. Trade and Bills Receivables 17. ESRNRERERERE
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
Trade receivables B 5 fEWRIa 216,346 580,778
Impairment VERES (3,111) (2,091)
Trade receivables, net of impairment B 5 EYGRIE(FIRRIE) 213,235 578,687
Bills receivable e 366 -
213,601 578,687
The Group granted credit terms ranging from 90 days to 180 days BRETEPAERINERATTANKIEIN - NEER
(2020: 90 days to 240 days) to customers after the delivery of MEPELERZNEREIOKRZE 180K (20204 :
goods, except for certain customers who were required to make YOKRE240R)HIEEH - REBSREHER
payments in advance prior to the delivery of goods. The Group seeks W Bl ) FEUGRIB 45 B A R ERIR 12 I - WRRARE
to maintain strict control over the settlements of its outstanding ZHERRT - HEE R ERIE - B 5 EUGK
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit BAT B ° 20214128318 © E 5B
risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. As at 31 December 18 AR #281,044,00070 (202012 A31H = A
2021, trade receivables of RMB281,044,000 (31 December 2020: R#567,169,00070) IAMEBERE -
RMB567,169,000) were covered by letters of credit.
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17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting periods, based on the date of revenue recognised and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

EERBRERERRE(E)

RBERRER R EER BN E F EKFOR
(BEIBREBREE) WRESTIT

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFTT

Within 3 months 3EAR 207,097 576,378
3 to 12 months 321218 R 6,138 2,309
213,235 578,687

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

o RUFRREBERBEEESNT

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
At beginning of year REA 2,091 2,441
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses (note 7)  JE{EEBEME,/(BE) (H1527) 1,020 (350)
At end of year MER 3,111 2,091

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit loss rate. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and
coverage by other forms of insurance). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

RERE B RBEEREETRED T - A
AFEREMEEEERX - BEXRERAGRLUE
BR (AR PRI R E R AAE RO
EDNZEEP o AR e A BEEE © %at
BRI AREINEER - BRERERNHRES A
AISHERBESEE BRSO RREEARRIER
MAIEAEER -

2021 ¢ mpmnspparas 171
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17. EZEWFEREWERE(E)
DT EFIA A EE B GER EE 5
R EERBRER -

17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

172

As at 31 December 2021 7A2021512H31H
Past due
B
1t090 91to 180 More than
Current days days 180 days Total
L 1290X 91Z£180Kk H#iB180K A%
Expected credit loss rate TEEMEEEER 1.84% 8.56% 61.62% 100%
Gross carrying amount fREAE
(RMB’000) (AR¥ETFT) 207,793 6,701 28 1,824 216,346
Covered by letters of credit LAMERZEEE
(RMB'000) (AR¥ETFTT) (169,862) - - - (169,862)
37,931 6,701 28 1,824 46,484
Expected credit losses TREMEEEE
(RMB'000) (ARBTFT) 696 574 17 1,824 3,111
As at 31 December 2020 #2020%12 4318
Past due
1t090 91to 180 More than
Current days days 180 days Total
B1EA 1£90K 91E180Kk #BiA180K a5
Expected credit loss rate TEEMEEEER 1.25% 3.04% 66.30% 100%
Gross carrying amount BREEE
(RMB'000) (AR¥FT) 576,495 1,595 2,261 427 580,778
Covered by letters of credit LAMERZEEE
(RMB'000) (AR¥TFT) (567,169) - - - (567,169)
9,326 1,595 2,261 427 13,609
Expected credit losses TEEEE RS
(RMB’000) (AR¥EFT)
17 48 1,499 427 2,091
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2021%F12A31H

17. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China to certain import agents in
order to settle other payables, with a carrying amount in aggregate
of RMB20,103,000 (31 December 2020: RMB110,097,000)
(collectively referred to as the “Derecognised Bills”). The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity term from one to six months at
the end of the reporting period. All the Derecognised Bills had been
accepted by Banks which are reputable banks in the PRC and had a
maturity of within six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In
the opinion of the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly,
it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated advances on discounting. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase
these Derecognised Bills is equal to their face amounts. In the
opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

17.

B REWRIERERERE)
20216 12A318 - AEEBSEETEHFERA
HIRITA N W EREE TE TEORIE - LEE
BREEA L ARE20,103, 00075<2020fﬁ12)%31
B : AR®110,097,0007T ) & E b fE 4 ZUE
(GBI L ERTIR ) - RIREHR - fﬂﬂﬁw
ZEMEIBBEA—ZENER - RIEEHKR - 1A
RIMFEREREEPEMAERTEN - 28R A
ANEA o RB(PEAREFBEZEE) - WP
FERITIEY  RIEERZENFEAUAEEH
BRRE([HEL2HE])  -EFERE  AEEEE
BIBRE D BRI EREEA BN ER R B3R
Aty - EEKR IR BRI R AFEER S
FHEIEME - AEERS KR EERAZIENE
BLEMBHNRSERRRRERZ SRR
REENABRBSRBEEEERS - 2R
B REEHKEREENFESENATE
WREK -
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31 December 2021 2021412 H31H

18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets  18. FE{JFIE »

HttEWRER HmEE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBFT
Prepayments in respect of: PATNIE B B0
— purchase of inventories -BEFE 1,492 -
— consultation service fee — AR E 1,295 814
- others —HAfh 800 756
Deposits in respect of: A TIEERRS
—issuance of letters of credit —HUEAR 135,375 24,998
— distribution rights — SR 127,514 -
— others —Hfh 35,118 5,272
Value-added tax recoverable AU e S EF 6,050 5,818
Amounts due from related parties e B 5 SRR 1" -
Other receivables in respect of: LATIE B M E R
- staff advances —BI8X 1,091 359
— others —Hfth 4,649 3,217
313,395 41,234
Impairment allowance DEREEELE (356) (520)
313,039 40,714
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18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets 18. FE{J5I1E » HtEWRER Hitb B &

(Continued)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of financial
assets in prepayments, other receivables and other assets are as

(#&)

BENFOR - RRRSEREMEETNERE
EREHEREREHNT

follows:
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
At beginning of year REL) 520 472
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses (note 7)  E{EESIB B s, (8 (K17E7) (164) 48
At end of year RER 356 520

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering ECLs, which are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

In determining ECLs for financial assets in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, the Directors have taken into account
the historical default experience and the future prospects of the
industries and/or considered various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information, as appropriate, in estimating the
probability of default of each of the financial assets in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets occurring within their respective
loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon default in
each case.

FEEZBEBEE2EREFRTHEMABREE
EEENEREERR - RERE B BELRE
DT o R EREE B R IEH B AR R
FERIAR A AR

EEERNHR  HtRKFREREMEETS
BMEENTAREERER  EXCERELED
BERBRITEARRAR - & REMANTER -
HitERAREMEETSBSREERRS
B E R RIS P S E A 3 AR AR A %
BT EEDERE - Z BN ER RIBRIL
EERRR(IEE)
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19. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Bank 19. 4 RIS EEBYURCIKIPBITE

Balances £R
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARBFIT
Cash and bank balances IR LIRITAEER 381,067 143,765
Less: pledged bank deposits* A EERRITER (55,015) -
Cash and cash equivalents ReLHEZEY 326,052 143,765
*  The balances as at 31 December 2021 represented bank deposits * FA2021F 12 A31 AN EHIERER R AT
with original maturity of less than three months when acquired which B =1{E AR B EABUREE EmimEM 7R
are pledged to banks to issue letters of credit for the purchase of 1THVERITIESK ©
pharmaceuticals.
The Group’s cash and bank balances at the end of the reporting RIREBR - NEEMRE RIRITERAE—F
period can be further analysed as follows: DT -
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARBFIT
Denominated in RMB NAREHE 257,299 102,572
Denominated in US$* ZETTEHE 74,138 37,263
Denominated in HK$* OB TTEHE 47,887 3,835
Denominated in C$* e XTaHE 1,704 40
Denominated in S$* LART I STt E 39 55
381,067 143,765
* US$ stands for the United States dollar. HK$ stands for the Hong Kong
dollar. C$ stands for the Canadian dollar. S$ stands for the Singapore
dollar.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, ARETEEARLIBAREMER - A @ R
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and B R HIC ONEE B TR Y o A5 P ~ S TE LN IEE
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange IBIRE ) AREBEFEEREREINEERR
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other RITIEARKE B Hh G -
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank SRITIR IR BT AFRITE RN RS ZEF
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for a period of three months R B - FHERNEREAE=MEA @ WIL&H
and earn interest at the respective deposit rates. The bank balances MTERFERTE o SRITEB N TEHEF I ERE
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no BN sk BB RIFAERTT ©

recent history of default.
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20. Trade Payables

An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the issuance date of the pharmaceuticals’
inspection report, is as follows:

20. EFENRIE
R R E N R RBRIRET I BB 5
NEEBEB ST -

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFTT

Within three months =EARA 422,933 700,320

Trade payables of the Group are normally settled within 120 to 180
days (2020:120 to 240 days)..

21. Contract Liabilities
Contract liabilities consisted of short-term advances received from
customers in relation to the sale of pharmaceuticals. Changes in
contract liabilities during the year are as follows:

AEBNESEMNTE—KNI1208E180H
(20204 : 1208 E2408 ) N4EE ©

21. EHNEE
ANEERERINEER A TSNS AN
HIE - R ANBEESIT -

2021 2020

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETT

At the beginning of year PAFA] 27,806 38,582

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract ~ REFET AR LB EEHT

liabilities balance at the beginning of the year (note 4) B WERU S (Hfit4) (27,732) (8,742)

Transfer to other payables and accruals BT H M S RUIE R B AT RUA = (29,685)
Net increase due to cash received, excluding amounts B2 U5 4 B 4 638 INF4EE -
recognised as revenue during the year TEERF NER B

- 27,675 27,651

At the end of year REXR 27,749 27,806
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2021%F12A31H

22. Other Payables and Accruals

22, HiEFRIE R EERTFIE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE ARBT T ARBFT
Current portion: BIERE 5 -
Payables related to: BHELATIE B eI RIE
Payroll and welfare payable ENTERER 2,030 1,218
Deposits received 2iuze (a) 14,117 4,023
Consulting and professional fees EEINEE S 12,616 6,433
Other tax payables HAb e HIE 845 1,800
Import agent services #EORIBRTS (b) 1,886 117,848
Interest payable RS 114 -
Other payables H 1T R IE 21,816 30,624
53,424 161,946
Non-current portion: FERNERFL S -
Payables related to: BHELATIE B BRI RIE
Deposits received [=hlei-sn (@ = 93,422
53,424 255,368
Notes: Hraz -
(@) The balance represented refundable deposits received from the Group’s (a) HHEARBELAFELHEDRREHBEROM

(b)

(@)

distributors according to distribution contracts in order to guarantee
their performance under distribution contracts, which were unsecured
and interest-free.

The balance as at 31 December 2021 mainly represented the payables
to one (31 December 2020: three) independent third party, which is
principally engaged in import agent services, for their settlement of part
of the purchase of pharmaceutical products on behalf of the Group
together with the service charge for the import and logistics services.
Such payables were non-interest-bearing and secured by inventories
with a carrying amount of RMB56,339,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB241,577,000) (note 16).

The balance as at 31 December 2020 mainly represented the payables
related to interest-free deposits totalling RMB100 million received
from a distributor for a distribution period granted by the Group with
the latest repayment date in July 2022, which had been repaid during
the year ended 31 December 2021. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group recorded imputed discount on deposits of nil (2020:
RMB8,510,000) (note 5) and unwinding of discount on deposits of
RMB6,578,000 (2020: RMB1,932,000) (note 6).

Other than the other payables mentioned above, all other payables
of the Group are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.
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(b)

(@

REBEHANRAREWRNTRELRS - ZFE
EREEMRTEE -

R2021F1N2A3TEMEHRETEZRENT—F
(2020F12A31H : =R) T EXFEOREMR
BB E=FNFE  BERRAEERN
B4y ek 5 R BE B9 IR A S O R ik RS B9 AR
HE - BHEENZEATHE  BHEEEEBEA
R #56,339,0007C (2020412 A31H : AR
241,577,0007T) FE (MiaE16) fEHE ©

MR20206F 12 A3 BB EEIREREB G
TR HEAT A RO TR BiES
AEHARBI0EETEENENUE  HEE
FEEAE2022F7 8 - EREE2021F12A31
AILFEEE - #ZE2021F12A83181LFE -
AEBEHBSRSHEMRAT(2020F : AR
#38,510,0007T) (Mi5E5) MR KRB IR L & AR
6,578,0007T (20204F : AR 1,932,0007T) (Fff
6) °

B bt E A AT RIRSN - AR BRI A AL
RIEH BT B MR -



Notes to Financial Statements BA#%3R &R KizE
20214128318

31 December 2021

23. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 23. ;T BB TR EMMER
2021 2020
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
Notes (%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRIE ElRFI=
i:: (%) H4A AEBTT (%) il AREFT
Current; 58 -
Bank loans B8R
- Secured and quaranteed -EAARARR (a) 337-5.50 2022 80,000 37360 201 £9,000
- Guaranteed -RER (a) = - - 29 201 8,156
Other borrowings AR
- Unsecured -BER (b) 379 2022 121,514 - - -
Current portion of long term RERTEMENE (e)
bank loans - quaranteed B -BER 275 202 806 275 2021 830
208,320 71,986
Non-current: *E:
Bank loans L
- Guaranteed -BER (a) 275 2023-2025 2,44 275 20222025 3,042
Other borrowings AR
- Unsecured — iR ) 10.68 2023 130,000 - - -
132,244 3,042
340,564 81,028
2001 5 memBgngaRas 179



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz

31 December 2021

2021%F12A31H

23. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings
(Continued)

23. FFRBRITREMER(E)

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans Repayable: FERTEEEEZD
RITE -
Within one year or on demand R—FEARAHILZERK 80,806 77,986
In the second year RE—F 806 830
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZFRF
(BREEEMF) 1,438 2,212
83,050 81,028
Other borrowings Repayable: FER AT RREEERS
HMER
Within one year or on demand R—FEASHIZERK 127,514 -
In the second year RE_&F 130,000 -
257,514 -
340,564 81,028

Notes:

(a)

180

The Group's bank and other borrowings are secured and guaranteed as
follows:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2021, the bank loan of RMB80,000,000 (31
December 2020: RMB60,000,000) was secured by the Group's
certain buildings of RMB57,159,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB60,152,000) and was jointly guaranteed by Mr. Huang
Xiangbin, the Company and Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Sinco Technology”).

As at 31 December 2020, the bank loan of RMB9,000,000 was
secured by the Group’s certain buildings of RMB10,144,000 and
guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin.

As at 31 December 2020, the bank loan of RMB8,156,000
was guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin and Chengdu Sinco
Technology.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank loan of RMB3,050,000 (31
December 2020: RMB3,872,000) was guaranteed by Mr. Huang
Xiangbin.
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(a)

ARG EIRTT S EoA 5 SR AR LA T (R0 S HE AR

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R2021F12 8318 RITERARKE
80,000,0007C (2020912 A31H : AR
60,000,00070) HAKEEE TEFARE
57,159,0007C (2020912 318 : AR
60,152,0007) VB + WHAEFWLAL -
AAT R EER R B ERMTEREEA
A (AR ER R R | ) L RIEHELR -

M2020912A318 > FITERARE
9,000,000 THALEEE TIEFARK
10,144,000 C{EHEIR » W R B MW S AEE
ER

M20209 128318 RITERARE
8,156,0007T F & £ 4 ot A2 I A BB AL 2 st
FAEEIR -

M2021F 128318 FETEFRARK
3,050,0007C (2020412 A31H : AR
3,872,0007T ) B EFEMW Se A VETEIR o
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23. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

24,

(b)

(@

(d)

The balance represented the interest-bearing borrowing amounting to
USD20.0 million granted by a third party. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the third party made a payment of USD20.0 million
to the Group's supplier on behalf of the Group as the deposit for the
relevant distribution rights granted. On 26 January 2022, the supplier
repaid the deposit to the third party. Since the date of the repayment,
the Group derecognised the interest-bearing borrowing of USD20.0
million due to the third party and the other receivables of USD20.0
million due from the supplier.

The balance represented the interest-bearing borrowing amounting to
RMB130.0 million granted by a third party.

As at 31 December 2021, except for the bank loan which was

23. FFRBRITREMER(E)

Hit (&)

(b)

(0

(d)

HREERBE= AR T EBH2008EET °
HZE2021F12A31BEFE  BE=FRAEE
AAEBEERE 2008 EXTEAERER
AR RIS - P20229F1 7268 » HERR
FE=HERRS  c BERZBE  NEBEKIEHE
RIERNE =M BIER20.08 BE T R EMKH
FEREH) E b FELLGRIB20.0B8 &3 TT ©

BBESESHETHOH B ERARKI130.08
B

2021612 A318 - Bre&%E A ARK3,050,000

denominated in HK$ amounting to RMB3,050,000, all bank loans were TCHERTTERUAB TTEHES - FrBRITERIIA
denominated in RMB. ARBEHE -
Share Capital ;N
Shares eavi
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Authorised: SEE
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2020: 10,000,000,0000% (20204 12 A
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 31H : 10,000,000,0004% )&
HK$0.0001 each REEI{E0.0001 BTy A% 822 822
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
1,872,890,585 (31 December 2020: 1,872,890,585/% (2020512 A
1,691,890,585) ordinary shares of 31H : 1,691,890,5850% ) &A%
HK$0.0001 each E1E0.0001 8 LR E @Ak 151 136
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24. Share Capital (Continued)

25.

182

24, BRA(4

Shares (Continued) B 17 (4
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RAGIRASEE T -
follows:
Number of Share capital
Notes share in issue RMB’000
ERITRG [N
e HA ARET T
At 31 December 2020 and 12020F12831H &

1 January 2021 20211818 1,691,890,585 136
Issue of new shares BITHIR D (a) 169,000,000 14
Share options exercised EAT{E AR (b) 12,000,000 1
At 31 December 2021 H2021%F12A31H 1,872,890,585 151

Notes: Mzt -

(@ On 23 July 2021, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with the subscribers, agreeing to allot and issue a total of 169,000,000
subscription shares at a subscription price of HK$0.5 per subscription
share. On 28 September 2021, a total of 169,000,000 subscription
shares were allotted and issued to the subscribers at the subscription
price of HK$0.5 per subscription share, resulting in new share capital of
HK$16,900 (before issue expenses).

(b)  The 12,000,000 share options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2021 resulted in the issue of 12,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company and new share capital of HK$1,200 (before issue
expenses).

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the development of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are
employees (whether full time or part time) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”), including directors (including
independent non-executive directors) and the senior management
of the Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity. The Share
Option Scheme was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 1
February 2016 and became effective upon the listing of the shares
of the Company and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from 1 February 2016. Please refer to
the 2016 annual report of the Company for details.
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25,

(@)  M202147A238 » NEEEREE AR LRE R
# o AERAEEERABRNOSAETREER
E%174 ££169,000,0000% RIEN D © 7202149
A28H » & 3£169,000,000/% R8I (1 AR EE (B
BRABERMOOSHETEEERETTFRBA
B FTIE R AN 16,9008 7T (FBREEI TR A ) ©

(b)y MEZE2021412 8318 IE4FE171£ 12,000,000
1D BRI B 3£7712,000,000 08 75 A &) 38 A% &
FTBR% AR, 20078 7T (FNBREETTRI S AT) ©

AR RS2
ANAEEVERE AR AERT B ([ FEARERT &) - BEM
AASEERELERNEERDHERERE
RER - BIRER EIME BERSHERANT
HIfB AR A EEFE R ARIENTMEE
([FEEEDMNES (BRI - 814X
PNE > EfBRARREMREEENES(RE
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. IBIRAESTEI(E)
The following share options were outstanding under the Share RAFE  BIRETSI AL TNERE®R AT
Option Scheme during the year: & :
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
INEEF 1T EE BREHE
Notes HK$ per Share ‘000
b BRET T4
As at 1 January 2021 720211 A1H (i) 0.568 15,650
Exercised during the year RERTITEE (ii) 0.568 (12,000)
Forfeited during the year RERNZUL (iii) 0.568 (2,500)
As at 31 December 2021 20216128318 (i) 0.568 1,150
Notes: st -
(i)  The share options outstanding as at 31 December 2021 represented ()  P2021F12 A31HEKRITENBERER A QA

1,150,000 share options (31 December 2020: 15,650,000) granted by
the Company on 21 September 2016 at an exercise price of HK$0.568
per share to certain eligible participants of the Company in respect of
their contributions to the Group's development under the Share Option
Scheme.

HAARETARERSHEHAEEERBAED
HEE - R20165F9 421 IR BB 214717
FEEAR0.568F LM EF H#91,150,00015 BE
AS%#E (2020512 A318 : 15,650,000 ) ©

(i) The 12,000,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the (i)  F R E 1T F 12,000,000 17 B8 i # & B %17
issue of 12,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new share 12,000,000 B A8 72 &) 3 38 A% M #THE % 7K 1,20078
capital of HK$1,200 (before issue expenses). TL(HBREEATRIZAD) ©

(iliy  The 2,500,000 share options granted to one employee under the (i) IRIEFE AR — & (B BR T #92,500,00017 %

Share Option Scheme were forfeited following his resignation from the
Company during the year.

RN REARFELARRFHERBOLU

2021 3R FRRBEEERARAR
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. ERAEETEI(E)
720214F12 A31H K%2020F 12 A318 » HATT
RRERAE T TR E AT AT -

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as
follows:

31 December 2021 2021%12A31H

Number of Exercise price
options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE 1TEH
‘000 HK$
T BT
460 0.568 From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022
201799 H218%E202249H20H
345 0.568 From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022
201849 H21H%E202249H20H
345 0.568 From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022
201999 H21H%E202249H20H
1,150

31 December 2020 2020%12A31H

Number of Exercise price
options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE 1T
‘000 HK$
T BT
6,260 0.568 From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022
201799 A21H=202249H20H
4,695 0.568 From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022
20189 H21H=202299H20H
4,695 0.568 From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022
20199 A21H=202249H20H
15,650
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. ERAEETEI(E)

There was no share option expense recognised during the reporting
periods.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme was estimated as of the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 48.75
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.72

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 1,150,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 1,150,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$115 and share premium of at least HK$653,085 (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 1,150,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.06% of the Company’s
shares in issue as of that date.

RIS M EEREAIERER -

IR IR ST 81 H B A R A E BB IR 12
HERNR G BHL ZBAE AR - WK
PR P AR RO GRS R A © TREDIPTER A A
BA2E

1% B (%) =
TEERR IR(%) 48.75
2L F 2R (%) 0.72

TEHR 18 R BRI 2R IR A AR R R IEBE R
' AERBRERAE

ATERATEREEMATEHBRESE MR

] ©

S
B Ol

R2021F12 A318 - BIRERERE - A2 F
75 1,150,00010 M ARTTEE M BERLIE - BIBEAR
A E RIMEARZERE - BB TE MR TENER
¥ - B BUERYNEE1T1,150,000% KA 7] I EA
LA R2 38 AN AR AR 11578 7T R iR 17 )% 8 2= 653,085
PEIT (FOBREE TR AT) o

RZESB SRR IER S - BIREARET S - &
A AHEH1,150,00017 HARITEEEVEARIE - (57K
DA B ERE B TAR19490.06% ©
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2021412 A31H

26. Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on page 8 of the financial

statements.

(@)

(b)

()

186

Share premium account

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable as a
dividend on the condition that the Company is able to pay its
debts when they fall due in the ordinary course of business at
the time the proposed dividend is to be paid.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the aggregate nominal
amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of subsidiaries domiciled
in Mainland China, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with PRC Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("PRC GAAP"), to the statutory surplus reserve (the “SSR")
until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

As Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai, Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals and Qingdao Yusheng are wholly-
foreign-owned enterprises, allocation to the SSR is not required.
According to the Rules for the Implementation of Foreign-
funded Enterprise Law of the PRC and articles of association
of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai, Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals and Qingdao Yusheng, they are required
to allocate 10% of their profit after tax in accordance with
PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”) until such
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.

The SSR and the SRF are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021

26. {#E
AEENEBSEREIRAANEE RBEFEHSE
BERBREBSEGAMSEBE 2T

(@)

(b)

(c)

IR 195 (E Bk

EARMEBRIFASHEARTERE °
BRESEXHIASHERRE  WAR
ANIRMNEERERENERAEERS
RERHREERS - BIROEER DR AR

=1
T

ERRER
EHBHBIEADAIRA ARG )| FE A
BETHRAREE -

EERRE

RIEH B R BE RALR B B A &M B A
AR ERMAR - SPEWELQRZER
BHREARSTRAN(TFREAREHR
BIDEBESEEI0%SRTEEFNEEER
HEE(DETRBEE])  EERFHHE
B HFAMEAA50% ©

A ER A - BRA LS - K
ERAEBELESREDINEBERE
WM BRRE LT RGHEE - RIERBEIN
BOERE A AN ERI s
ERR G KEBENERER TSGR
ARG EIRMEA] - ZSARAREBEPEAR
e RANDLHEHI10% BB 5w T EETE R
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26. Reserves (Continued)
(d) Share option reserve

26. & (E)
(d) BRRHERKE

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

An amount of RMB2,210,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options during the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: nil). An amount of RMB477,000 was transferred from
the share option reserve to retained profits because the 2,500
share options were forfeited following the an employee’s
resignation from the Company during the year ended 31

BREREEECRBERRITERRE
HRFE  E—THBERPBRERME2.4
B ARG RERN N RH S 5B ER AR
At o ZE MR ARE B T R
ERMEER - KN AERERED
R B EREE N

RELZE2021F12 A31 B L FEBIREETT
#1%8 - AR¥2,210,000 7T B B A% G 5
RS RER(2020F 1 ) - REZR
202112 A31AIEFE - AR —HBEEK
A BRI %2, 50010 BB IR I - AR
#477,0007T F B AR I R R = (R B s A
(2020F : &) o

December 2021 (2020: nil).

27. Commitments 27. i
AEBRREHROEAEENT ¢

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREFIT

Contracted, but not provided for: EHESEE S
— Construction of a warehouse —EREE 83,008 83,008
— Furbishing of a property —BET 2,256 -
85,264 83,008

28. HARERE
RIFEEIR - NEEBEIAEARARRE -

28. Contingent Liabilities
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

2021 5 mpsBspparas 187



Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

29. Related Party Transactions 29. BELRZ

(@) During the year, the Group had the following

(@ FR  AEEHEBFEFETHEX

material transactions with related parties: XEWMT -
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFT
Guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin B AR
Interest-bearing bank loan FTERITER 80,000 81,028
Amount due from Risun FEURisunzk I8 11 -

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

(b) AEBEEEEASHH

the Group

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Short-term employee benefits EHEE RN 2,338 2,134
Pension scheme contributions RINSET IR 51 44

Total compensation paid to XNTEEBEEAEN
key management personnel e Gt 2,389 2,178

30. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 30. ZREBRERERMEE

Flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had non-
cash additions to short-term borrowings and other receivables
of RMB127,514,000 and RMB127,514,000, respectively, in
respect of arrangements for the payment of the deposit for
the relevant distribution rights granted by the Group's supplier
(note 23(b)).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB917,000 and RMB917,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for office premises.
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(a) EEFHRERS

RELZ2021F12A3181EFE » SiAEE
HEFE THEBLHEEN RS N R
T ARERBERREAERFIENIE
REeEREDRIAARE127,514,0007T & A
R#127,514,0007T(FizE(23(b)) °

HE2020F12A31HILFE - AEEEH
MAEYEHRERNEAEEEREE
BEMNIIERSAE DRI AARKEI17,0007T
M AR#917,0007T °



2021%F12A31H

Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021

30. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows (Continued)

30. HEBRERERME(E)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METEIEENEBEEE
activities
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12A318 LFE
Other Interest-
Lease payables bearing
liabilities and accruals bank loans
H
MER B
HEEE FEStRE RITEM
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TRT AR¥TRT AR¥TR
At 1 January 2021 20211 518 1,103 117,848 81,028
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREEH (774) (115,962) 132,063
Foreign exchange movement SNEZ ) - - (41)
Other non-cash movement HEthIFR e #E) - - 127,514
Interest expense FEZH 55 - -
At 31 December 2021 20218128318 384 1,886 340,564
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020F 12 A31HIEFE
Other Interest-
Lease payables bearing
liabilities  and accruals bank loans
H A EfS
AR PR
HEBE FEETRRIE RITER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2020 FA202041 A18 1,176 216,453 187,484
Changes from financing cash flows BMERESREZH (1,085) (98,605) (105,982)
New lease e 917 - -
Foreign exchange movement 4NGEE S & - - (474)
Interest expense B H 95 - -
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A318 1,103 117,848 81,028
2001 £ mRmmmpparas 189
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30. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

cash flows is as follows:

30. HEBRERERME(E)

(o HERSHHAE
RenBRNORERSRIDAEMT :

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Within operating activities B RE) 1,000 433
Within financing activities BREIE RS 774 1,085
1,774 1,518

31. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2021

31. £RTEER
SER SR T ERBERROBEEENT -

20215%12A831H

Financial assets SREE

Financial assets
at amortised cost
R
HERNEREE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Trade and bills receivables B 5 BEMGRIE KRR 213,601

Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERFIE - A FEUGRIE &
other receivables and other assets HiWEENSREE 303,402
Pledged deposits [REEEEE 55,015
Cash and cash equivalents ReMESEEY 326,052
898,070
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31. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 31. EMIT BEERI(E)
31 December 2021 (Continued) 20215124318 (&)
Financial liabilities SmasE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
ZEER AT E
Hemas
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Trade payables E Z N FRIE 422,933
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 5t AE {th FE~ 2018 K JEE T30 TE )
TERIAE 50,549
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTESRIT R A A IERK 340,564
Lease liabilities HEAaE 384
814,430

31 December 2020

2020F12A31H

Financial assets SREE

Financial assets
at amortised cost
TREESER AN
HENEREE
RMB’000
ARETIT
Trade receivables SN ETE 578,687

Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERFIE - E A FEUGRIE &
other receivables and other assets HiWEENSREE 33,326
Cash and cash equivalents ReNRESEEY 143,765
755,778
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31. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 31. EMIT BEERI(E)
31 December 2020 (Continued) 20205128318 (&)
Financial liabilities cRBeE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
R R
ATENSRAR
RMB’000
ARETT
Trade payables H 5 RIS 700,320
Financial liabilities included in FAE A FE T FRIE R ST RUIE Y
other payables and accruals Ea =N 252,350
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTESRIT R A A IERK 81,028
Lease Liabilities HEAE 1,103
1,034,801

32. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 32. @RI TAAFERAFEER

Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial R R (E B R A 2 EA M B A A S IR AR E /Y
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably FEEeRMIEN  AEEZSETANKREER
approximate to fair values due to short term to maturity, are as NEEET
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair value
IREE DNEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETRT AR¥BTR ARETT
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Non-current portion: FEENERE S
Interest-bearing bank loans SFRIBITER 2,244 3,042 2,137 2,834
Other borrowings HE® 130,000 - 131,349 -
Other payables HAth JEAT3RIE = 93,422 = 93,422

132,244 96,464 133,486 96,256
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32. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 32. @M TEAFERAFEER(E)

Instruments (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals and current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans, and
the non-current other payables have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The fair value of financial liabilities included in non-current
other payables approximate to their carrying amount due to the
insignificant change in market interest rate. The changes in fair value
as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for non-current
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2021 were assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: nil).

The Group did not have any financial assets for which fair values are
disclosed as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: nil).

EEECHHEREMASEHEY  EEPFER
BZRMFANEWNERE - BRENTIE - FTA
BNRIE  HMERFAREMEENSRE
E - FEARMMEMNSURRER SRR SRR E N
KEVHET BERTT R EMERN A FEREREE
BE - TEARZETAREHAZE -

TREERBENDTERERT (WIFRIEL
BRHE) ZENERR SR AETRRNTE
WAL - ARG ATFENF R RERHRN
T~

FEBNERET BIRITE SR R FERN B th B R IBHI
FENAFELUER - GERB MG TEEEN
TERRA BN RAIRBERRIBERETE
B FTAERBEMENRENSBREEAT
EHRHEEmERS  REAAMSNEEEHTK -
B2021F 128318 - AEEAGEHEIERH S
BEENTEORBRFTEATERK -

AREBM2021F12 A31 B W ET (IR A FET
ENEHBE(20209128318 : &) -

AREER2021FE12A3MB T EEADHREATF
ENERERE (20209128318 « ) »
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. i EREBREEREE

Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings are disclosed in note 23.

The Group had no material exposure to the risk of changes in the
market interest rates as the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates were short term.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising
from all of its interest-bearing borrowings through the use of fixed
rates. In addition, the Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge against interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's purchases of products from the overseas suppliers are
conducted in US$. Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, interest-bearing
bank loans and trade payables, that are denominated in S$, US$, C$
and HKS$.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management
monitors the Group’s foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. BIEKMEEEERBE (&)

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change in
RMB against US$, HK$, C$ and S$. The 5.0% is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analysis of
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each
reporting period has been determined based on the adjustment of
translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period for a 5.0% change in RMB against US$, HKS,
C$ and S$, respectively, with all other variables held constant, of

HNEE R (48 )

TRINTARBEZET - BT - M RIS
TLIE R EE)5.0% MBREE © 5.0% BREREE
ERABE2RELRKRIALE  AEEEY
HNEETE RS IR AT REZ B AT - AEERESHRE
HREYINERBEREDT - BIRIBEMA
Hin S SRETENBAT  RARKERET
PETT ~ ANTT R 3T bR T i R B E)5.0% D RIFHE
EHEHREEERBBEREEHAEEEE
20214 [2 20204512 A31 B IEFE B BTE FI &Y
FEBETE(HRAZETT BT IRt

the Group's profit before tax for the years ended 31 December SHEMIRS MRS EEY - ESRIWEUE - Hit
2021 and 2020 (due to changes in the fair value of cash and cash FEWEIE « sHERITERNLEME ZFIER AT
equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, interest-bearing BEEFH) :
bank loans and trade payables denominated in US$, HK$, C$ and
S$):
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
US$/HKS$/C$/S$ (decrease) in
rate % profit after tax
Ex/ B/
T,/ N T RS BRBLERF
EFH(FEE)% 2,/ i)
RMB’000
ARBTT
2021 20214F
If RMB weakens against US$ WAREHZETTRE (5) 4,504
If RMB strengthens against US$ WARB R ETHE 5 (4,504)
If RMB weakens against HK$ i AREE B Tz B (5) (2,589)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i AR & THHE 5 2,589
If RMB weakens against C$ AR R Tz E (5) 2
If RMB strengthens against C$ W AR INTHE 5 (2)
If RMB weakens against S$ fist A RIS S g e Bz (8 (5) (102)
If RMB strengthens against S$ fis] A RIS S g o HHE 5 102
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group manages this risk by requiring payment in advance
from certain customers and offering standardised credit terms to
certain customers for a credit period ranging from 0 to 180 days. As
disclosed in note 17, the Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and senior management regularly reviews
the overdue balances.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets.

33.

BHEREERRRBE(E)

FEERE
AEEBBRERETEPIRAINKEAETEP
RESENEESHNFOHE180HMEEZA
B o B EE17ATIREE - AN EEE AR K E A
FEMFORAEE Z KBRS BARIES) - ARREERE
EHEBB A o

BE A O RFKRDE
TREMBEAREEFERREERRNERE
ZhEREREO - BRIFEAMN HKRASLLE SR
AEGHMER  TRIEZZENBMER - U
RR12ZANENFERDHNE - 228 A
BEEMEKREE -

Lifetime ECLs
FENRAEERR
12-month
ECLs Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
128 A 7
FEER
E-RR EZRBR E=RR kD7 @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR%TR ARBTR ARETRT AR%TR
31 December 2021 2021%12A31H
Trade receivables* BHRYE" - - - 216,346 216,346
Bills receivable e ZE IR 366 - - - 366
Financial assets included in BUNCGES-RE:Y
prepayments, other receivables R R BB R
and other assets** SREE™ - 303,758 - - 303,758
Pledged deposits [RERTIER A
- Not yet past due —HAREE 55,015 - - - 55,015
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREFEN
- Not yet past due —AARaH 326,052 - - - 326,052
381,433 303,758 - 327,528 901,537
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

33. MBEREEBERBEGE)

=8

FE\Be (48)

RE BRI O RFRDH(E)

Lifetime ECLs
FERESHEESE
12-month
ECLs Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
12{A A 7BH
FEBE
i 5 ERE E=MER BHIHE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARET:R
31 December 2020 20204124318
Trade receivables* 2 5 e B - - - 580,778 580,778
Financial assets included in STABRNFE - At
prepayments, other receivables ERFER LB ERN
and other assets** SRIEE" - 33,846 - - 33,846
Other financial assets measured at 1R AR AET 1)
amortised cost HigpEE - - - - _
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREFED
- Not yet past due —HAREE 143,765 - - - 143,765
143,765 33,846 - 580,778 758,389

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the
financial statements.

* %

MAEEERG(CEERENE S BYGIRT
T AMDERMBREME N 7THRENREE
e o

st AN R - HitBRRE R A EEN S
RAEYARBHEREENBTIZEESREED
EERRANIERARBZEER - IAEED
ERBEIER] - TR ZEREENEEE
EWABIEFRE]

BRAAKEEEREE SR KFIRNEERR
HE— S ECBUR - NSRRI 73R -
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, convertible bonds and its own funding sources.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

33.

BHEREERRRBE(E)

REBES MR
AEEFEEECHABREREENTIH AN
RIBFHREREREEEESRRAR

AEE® B ERBEBERT SRITREMMER -
AERESREESESRRERESHAILS
BRIER T -

UTRAEEE A ERREHRERA LR
B REEIEMER -

payments, is as follows:

2021
On Less than 1to5
demand 12 months years Total
ZER  DHR12ER 1855 #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBT T AR¥T ARBTT
Interest-bearing bank and FFERIT R EMIER
other borrowings - 224,384 146,107 370,491
Lease liabilities HEAE - 392 - 392
Trade payables B S RENRIE - 422,933 - 422,933
Other payables EAitER A 50,549 - - 50,549
50,549 647,709 146,107 844,365
2020
On Less than 1t05

demand 12 months years Total
meER  L128A 1255 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT ARETT ARBEFTT AREFTT

Interest-bearing bank and SHESRITREMER
other borrowings - 81,662 3,319 84,981
Lease liabilities HEAE - 753 392 1,145
Trade payables B S ENRIE - 700,320 - 700,320
Other payables EAtER A 158,928 - 93,422 252,350
158,928 782,735 97,133 1,038,796
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or raise new capital from its investors. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing financial
risk during the year.

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations and proceeds from
the new bank and other borrowings. The Group monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity plus net
debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
trade payables, other payables and accruals, tax payable and lease
liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Equity
includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent and non-
controlling interests. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

BHEREERRRBE(E)

BXREE
AREARERNEE R RARRAREELY
BB R BROARLE - AL
eSS ST

AEBRGER NS ERHLEARBEL L E
TEHRE - RERRFREARRE  AEExE
HEERBRERBXAEREEZEETHES - F
A BEMBERNBR - BERSBEW IR

%4
=8 e

REEREEBEEEMSARE S ARITIER
TREAMMERAERIERNEERFHL - NEH
Z‘Uﬁﬁ%%tt%(E\f,aa/%}%ﬁﬁ?%ﬁnﬂuﬁﬁéﬁﬁ)ﬁb
ER - BEFREEEARRITIEMENR BES
e IR ~ EAR BN SR MR FOR - & 1‘1‘%5&15
&%ﬁ%iﬁfﬁﬂfﬁ%&fﬁ SEMREERER
REBESRREA ARGER LIRS -
REHROBELENAT
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz

31 December 2021

2021%F12A31H

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

33. IAMREERZERBER(E)

Capital management (Continued) BEXREE(E)
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBFT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HESRITREMMER 340,564 81,028
Trade payables B 5 EFIA 422,933 700,320
Other payables and accruals At JEA FE R AT ER 53,424 255,368
Tax payable FEIRIE 12,826 21,999
Lease liabilities HEARE 384 1,103
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERIREEEY (326,052) (143,765)
Pledged deposits BHEIFEFER (55,015) -
Net debt BEFHE 449,064 916,053
Equity R 374,886 164,429
Equity and net debt EENBETRE 823,950 1,080,482
Gearing ratio BEHX 54.5% 84.8%
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

34. Events After the Reporting Period 34. EMBEE

Placing of new shares under general mandate

On 7 December 2021 and 30 December 2021, the Company
entered into a placing agreement and a supplemental agreement
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Placing Agreement”)
with a placing agent (the “Placing Agent”), respectively. Pursuant to
the Placing Agreement, the Company conditionally agreed to issue
and the Placing Agent agreed to procure not less than six placees
(the “Placees”) to subscribe for, on a best effort basis, an aggregate
of 160,000,000 placing shares at the price of HK$1.29 per placing
share. on 3 January 2022, all the conditions precedent set out in
the Placing Agreement have been fulfilled and the completion
took place. An aggregate of 160,000,000 placing shares have
been allotted and issued to the Placees at the price of HK$1.29 per
placing share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement.

R — R ERAREH R

R2021F 12 878 X2021F 12 A30H * AR
AIERRERE([RERIE]) DRI LB & 1B
Faxpz(A TRBIEEHZE]) - BRERE
Wi ARRIABRGRERTESRG - mEC
EREREFEZAB HRENDRANEEEA
(MEEA D ZTRECE RN 1.29BTTAIERR
B84 £160,000,000 % BL & %15 - 7202241 A
38 - BEEBREAEN S RMEHFERERK -
TEREEE - RIBEE BRI RGME - 62
160,000,000 R B & i ) B 1Z F IR B E A 9 1.29
PETTRIEARBLE KRBT TARECA ©
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31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

34. Events After the Reporting Period (Continued) 34, {HEWMERBE(E)

Placing of new shares under general mandate
(Continued)

The aggregate nominal value of such placing shares will be
HK$16,000. On the date of the Placing Agreement (i.e. 7 December
2021), the closing price of HK$1.60 per Share was quoted on the
Stock Exchange.

The net proceeds from the placing, after deduction of the
commission for the placing and other related expenses, amount to
approximately HK$194.9 million. The Company intends to use the
entire net proceeds arising from the placing for the purposes and in
the amounts set out below:

(i) approximately 40% of the net proceeds, or approximately
HK$78.0 million, to be used for relevant costs and expenses
incurred for the development of polycaprolactone microsphere
facial filler and its materials for injection, including but not
limited to development of experimental workshop, research
and development equipments and factories construction
investment; and

(i) approximately 60% of the net proceeds, or approximately
HK$116.9 million, to be used for strategic acquisition/
development of new projects/products in the field of medical
aesthetic including but not limited to development of new
medical aesthetic products, acquisition of medical aesthetic
organisations and investing in medical aesthetic projects. In
order to formulate and implement its business development
plan, the Group has been actively looking for investment/
business development opportunities.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 7 December 2021, 30 December 2021 and 3 January 2022.

202 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2021

RIE— R EH IR ()
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RAREEERMe REMARMANE  KES
EPTISRIBF A R1949A BB TT - NA A
A B =B 2 BRI IS TR RRIL T OIS RRIEIA
TR

()  FAEREFEHENL0%HA78.0E & B T
AREA X5 A C B IRE A
FB R EMEEEDBBKRARFESY @ 82
FETRNAZERSMA  AERERT
WERIE « &
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Notes to Financial Statements Bf#& R Mz
31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

34. Events After the Reporting Period (Continued)

The acquisition of Demei Company (as defined
below)

On 20 January 2022, the Company (or its designated affiliate)
entered into a letter of intent with all beneficial owners of Deyang
Demei Medical Aesthetic Clinic (General Partnership)* (f&[5{=cE8
BERPZE (LBAE)) ("Demei Clinic”) in relation to potential
acquisition of the equity interest in the target after Demei Clinic
completes restructuring and conversion.

On 22 March 2022, Sichuan Sinco Biotech Limited Company* (P4
JI BRI AR AR A7) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Mr. Huang Zhijian (a connected person of the
Company, being the son of Mr. Huang, an executive Director,
chairman of the Board and substantial shareholder of the Company)
entered into (i) each of the respective equity transfer agreements
between Deyang Demei Medical Beauty Hospital Limited Company*
(G E R EE AR AR AT) ("Demei Company”), being the
target after Demei Clinic completes restructuring and conversion,
and other parties, and (ii) a loan agreement (with a set of VIE
contractual arrangements to be entered into upon the completion
under the said equity transfer agreements) for purpose of acquiring
the entire equity interest in Demei Company at an aggregate
consideration of up to RMB95,000,000.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 20 January 2022 and 22 March 2022.

34. HEWRSE(E

WRBEELAR(EERTX)

2022F 18208 - AR (KEETFTHBAL)
HEfSEEREIAMRB(LEEAY) ([EEE
BEDNE2EESEEANEEEETKEMERE
BB EAR RN BEWIEEE L ER
=z,

7202293 H228 » M) BRIEAMEHTER A
B (ARE2EMNBAR) RESREE (KRR
BiEAL  ARARHITES - EFSFFERE
ERFEEEZF)NEEBHREGEEBEES
BRAERAR([EEAR]) (EEBEHEEKER
MEGIEIERBIRAT) REMETTE] AR
RS - R B3 GERBE Lt
BRI SR R SRR RS T RIS — RFIVIER 4Y
ZHE) - LBRRERE A ARI5,000,0007TH
BEEAR)DEHE -

HEBAMARRIHEA2022F1 208 &
20223 822BHRE o
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35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35. & BB 4k &
Information about the statement of financial position of the BERQABRNRREARNIABZARKEROT -
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEHEATMEE 97,497 65,603
Total non-current assets ERBEEHAE 97,497 65,603
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments TERRIA 588 219
Other receivables Eoh fE I GRIE 28 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL BT A B)FR IR 3,320 102,669
Cash and cash equivalents HehEeEEY 33,372 127
Total current assets REBEEHE 37,308 103,015
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Amounts due to a subsidiary JE A< —FEIPfY BB 2 ) 3R IE 57,285 159,900
Total current liabilities REBEEHARE 57,285 159,900
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REREEH (19,977) (56,885)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HEERRBAERS 77,520 8,718
Net assets EEZE 77,520 8,718
EQUITY s
Issued capital B E#ITARAR 151 136
Reserves (note) R (HaE) 77,369 8,582
Total equity AR 77,520 8,718
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31 December 2021 20219F12A31H

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35. X T B #SRR 2% ()
(Continued)

Note: B
The movements in the Company’s reserves are as follows: RATRMEEEBOT -
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
B 17 i B AR HEE AR e 5 2itEE Foy
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT ARBFT AREBFIT AREFT
At 31 December 2020 and 2020128318 &
1 January 2021 20211 A1H 289,113 2,906 (283,437) 8,582
Equity-settled share option LAt i E B IR AE 2o B
arrangements (note 25) (H15£25) 7,777 (2,210) - 5,567
Issue of new shares BITH R D 70,161 - - 70,161
Share issue expenses R BT TR (369) (369)
Loss and total comprehensive FREER
loss for the year P EEIEEE - - (6,572) (6,572)
At 31 December 2021 2021912 A31H 366,682 696 (290,009) 77,369
At 31 December 2019 and 72019512 A318 &
1 January 2020 20201 A1H 289,113 2,906 (276,913) 15,106
Loss and total comprehensive FAEER
loss for the year FEEBAEE - - (6,524) (6,524)
At 31 December 2020 720204124318 289,113 2,906 (283,437) 8,582
36. Approval of the Financial Statements 36. #t/EMBERE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BIISHRERENR2022F3 A30 A EES S HERK
the board of directors on 30 March 2022. REF)E o
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Definitions

" affiliate”
[E¢EBAT

"AGM"
[RRBEFAE]

"Articles” or “Articles of Association”
[4BA k[ 484 =240 A |

“Board”
(=

"Cayman Companies Law”

[REESREE]

“China” or “the PRC"
[FEE ]

“Company” or “our Company” or “the
Company”

[ARAE

“Director(s)”

(%]

[ moou

"Group”, “our Group”, “the Group”,

" non

we”, "us”, or “our”

[ARSE ] - [P Ikl A8 )

"HKS"
(7]

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person
BESHEEGIETE A TR E B E S EEIE S EE T A T EEREES HA
I EATE M AL

annual general meeting of the Company

ARBBRBFAE

the memorandum and articles of association of the Company (as amended from
time to time), conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
RRAR20165F2 A1 BB R ERMEVE B Z IR A AR R (T RHERT)

the board of Directors
£5g

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FEMEEMIE22E (1961 F E35EM) A RLVE(2013FEFTM) KL TRKRIEET
S AR B A B AL T g2k

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
REARMNE - RREFTOEES  RPIBITHERA Y

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (87125 2 2247 f5 FBR /2 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March
2015
BRRE SRR BR AT - R2015F3 16 AL A S ST M I REREBR
NG

the director(s) of the Company
NRARES

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before we became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
RRAF RFAIRIE R FIA R (SRR PR RIRE W E QR 2 ZER D A ATE B
=) AERM B R RIS AT S GRIERME ) &2 E

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BBEAEER
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"HKSE"
[ B EREP

“Hong Kong”
[&% ]

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”
[EERAFERD K]

“"Human Albumin Solution”

[AMAEREHR]

"

“Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences
GEGEEET

“Listing Rules”

[ s8]
“Main Board”
E
“"MPCM”

[&8 - HENLREEE]

“Mr. Huang”
[EEAE

“Octapharma”

[R5 i5E43% )
"PRC"
[ |

"Prospectus”

[EE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
HEMERXHMBER AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEIFEBRRITTHE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BRRRBHFELBRAT

refers to Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes
of total protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250
grammes of total protein per litre). The term Human Albumin Solution refers to
both products or either one of them as the context requires

BRI EREN20% AMAERIFR(BHE#EH2007%) R25% AMA
EHHEIR(BAESHED2507%) - AMBERFSIREZ TMIEE M E T —1E
(BFxE)

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences (1 B B8 L 2P0 A BER 9T AT
rh B AR B R B R B SR T

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BABZAESF LTRA - BARERT ST

Main Board of the HKSE
BB PTER

refers to marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and
promotion of pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers
REELENEE REHEDETHEE  HERREERE

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (& #£#2), our Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and one of our controlling shareholders

|EWSESE - BIFNER - ITESF - ITBEREERIE IR 2 —

Octapharma AG, a corporation limited by shares incorporated in the Swiss
Confederation

Octapharma AG * s TE F A L AR D B R A E

the People’s Republic of China
i A RHAAME

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
RATM201652 A29 R FIZHIBIRE
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“Reporting Period”
[¥REH]

“Risun”
[Risun ]

“RMB"
[ARE]

“SEQ"

[ &% R RG]

“Share(s)"”
[ A&7 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A& %]

“Share Option Scheme”

[FERtERt S

“U.S. dollars” or “US$"
[T

the financial year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31H I RFE

Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated in BVI on 16 January
2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. Huang

Risun Investments Limited * 74201591 A 16 Q£ B 4 m B B i AL AR
DA REAEREREHMEAR

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

AR hEIEEEHS

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
BAEEPESTEFZLF RAABKY - K AREF] ST

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each
RNA B R B REEO0.000178 T8 Ak

holder(s) of Shares
BaEE A

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February
2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VIl to
the Prospectus

RARP20165F2 A1 BB GRHRAR AT S - H & Z R R B AR = b
BADEER—MER —D At &R — 1 AR ET 2]

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
E 0 EFRERBEATER

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate”, “close associate”, “connected

i

person”,

w o v oou

connected transaction”, “controlling shareholder”, “core
connected person”, “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have
the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context

otherwise requires.

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities,
requlations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English
translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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